PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL
President Mike McGuinness, District 7

Pro Tem William A. Carrington, District 6 \
Melanie Rutherford, District 1 , ‘ A
Brett Nicholson, District 2 ;

Mikal Goodman, District 3 The HEART of Oakland County

Kathalee James, District 4
William Parker, Jr., District 5

Jonathan Starks, MiPMC, Deputy City Clerk Phone: (248) 758-3200

105%™ Session of the 11" Council — August 29, 2023, at 6:00 p.m.
Meeting Location: City Council Chambers, Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342

MEETING AGENDA

Call to Order

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States

Moment of Silence

Roll Call of Councilmembers

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers from the Meeting

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Consent Agenda

August 22, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes

August 25, 2023, Facilities and Property Subcommittee Meeting Minutes
August 25, 2023, Communications, Engagement, and Operations Subcommittee Meeting Minutes

Resolution Authorizing Increase of Maximum Compensation for Grants and Philanthropy Director
Position

oaw»

Special Presentations
1. Pontiac City Council Pride and Beautification Award Signs Distribution

2. Pontiac Alumni 2023 Homecoming Spirit Week in the City
Recognition of Elected Officials
Agenda Address (Two Minutes Time Limit)
Agenda Items
Resolutions
City Council

3. Resolution Honoring the Life and Service of Ernie Allen Sr.

4, Resolution Honoring the Pontiac School District of the City of Pontiac Board of Education for Michigan
Association of School Board Recognition.




Department of Public Works (DPW)
5. Resolution to execute an agreement with DLZ for the replacement of the Sheriff Building Cooling Tower for
the City of Pontiac.

Grants and Philanthropy
6. Resolution to approve the proposed budget amendment to increase budgeted revenues in the amount of
$12,277.50 to account 101-000-532.000-OAKPSD, and expenditures in the amount of $12,277.50 to account
101-818-806.001-OAKPSD and $2,722.50 to account 101-818-818.000-OAKPSD. (This proposed budget
amendment relates to the SEMCOG Grant.) (Postponed from 8/22/2023 Council Meeting.)

Purchasing
7. Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to publish the proposed budget amendment for the Budget Year 2023-
2024 increase budget appropriation in the following GL accounts: 101-233-702.00 — Salaries & Wages -
$45,833, 101-233-715.000 — FICA -City Contribution - $3, 506, 101-233-718.500 — MERS Employer
Contribution - $1,833, 101-233-716.000 — Medical Insurance - $9,813, 101-233-719.001 — Dental insurance -
$473, 101-233-716-011 — Hearing/Optical Insurance - $8, 101-233-717.000 — Short-term Disability, 101-
233-719.0 — Workers’ Comp Insurance - $833, 101-233-725.000 — Sick & Vacation Contribution - $441.

Public Comment (Three Minutes Time Limit)

Public Communications
City Council
8. Accent Pontiac, a non-profit in our community that seeks to improve the lives of Pontiac youth through music

education, is hiring. They have 4 part-time positions they are looking to fill by the time programming starts
this Fall: Assistant Brass Teaching Artist ($35/hr.), Assistant Woodwind Teaching Artist ($35/hr.), Assistant
Percussion Teaching Artist ($35/hr.), and a Program Assistant ($18/hr.) Anyone interested in applying, just
needs to submit a cover letter and resume to our Education Director, Dr. Tia Harvey at
tharvey@accentpontiac.org to get the process started.

9. Residents who are behind in paying their water bills or facing a service shut-off can get help from a
partnership between the Oakland County Water Resources Commission and OLSHA. Those who qualify could
get up to $1,500 in payments on their water bills and stop a shut-off plan. This program is temporary and
expires on September 30, 2023. Schedule an appointment with OLHSA to sign up by calling (248) 209-2600

or emailing info@olhsa.org.

10. Pontiac School District is seeking Mentors, Your Help is Needed for the Structured and Comprehensive
Mentoring Program to Support Students at All Grade Levels, Email communications@pontiacschools.org for
more information.

11. Seniors-Only Bingo, August 30, 203, from 1:00 to 3:00 pm, held at ruth Peterson Senior Center, 990 Joslyn
Avenue Pontiac, Michigan 48340

12. “Building Community, Building Trust” Mental Health Forum, September 9, 2023, from 12:00 to 5:00 pm, held
at All Saints Episcopal Church, 171 W. Pike Street, Pontiac 48341

13. Oak Hill Cemetery Walk, September 17, 2023, with tours starting every fifteen minutes from 2:00 to 4:00 pm,
held at Oak Hill Cemetery, 216 University Drive, Pontiac 48342, proceeds from the $15 tour donations to the
Oakland History Center go to cemetery improvement efforts, call (248) 338-6734 for information.

Mayor’s Office
14. Pontiac Music in the Parks Series has started. Last show: September 7 at Murphy Park (Persuasion with
special guest Consuming Arts). Showtime at 6:30 pm.




15. Michigan Matters — Community Water Legislation Forum on August 30, 2023, 10 to 11:30 a.m. Register now:
https:/bit.ly/MichiganMatters

16. Residents Encouraged to Complete Online Survey for Pontiac Youth Recreation Center Amenities
Closing Comments
Mayor Greimel (Seven Minutes Time Limit)
Clerk and City Council (Three Minutes Time Limit)

Adjournment




CONSENT
AGENDA

A




August 22, 2023, Draft

Official Proceedings
Pontiac City Council
104" Session of the Eleventh Council

Call to order

A Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order at the City Hall Council
Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, MI 48342 on Tuesday, August 22, 2023, at 6:01 p.m. by
Council President Mike McGuinness.

Invocation — Minister Veronica Taylor — Pontiac, Michigan
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States
Moment of Silence

Roll Call

Members Present — William Carrington, Mikal Goodman Kathalee James, Mlke McGumness, and
William Parker, Jr.

Mayor Tim Greimel was present.
A quorum was announced.

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda '

Motion to approve the agenda. Moved by Councnlperson Parker and second by
Councilperson Carrington.

Ayes: Camngton Goodman James, McGuinness, and Parker
No: None
Motion Carned

Consent Agenda
23-301 Resolution to approve the consent agenda for August 22, 2023. Moved by
Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson Parker.

Whereas, the City Council has reviewed the consent agenda for August 22, 2023,
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves the consent agenda for August
22, 2023, including August 15, 2023, City Council Minutes.

Ayes: Goodman James, McGuinness, Parker, and Carrington
No: None ‘
Resolution Passed

Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford arrived at 6:08 p.m.

Special Presentation

City of Pontiac Reestablished General Employees’ Retirement System (GERS & REGERS) Updates
Presentation Presenter: Sheldon Albritton, GERS & REGERS Board Chair

Recognition of Elected Officials — Beatrice Wright — Precinct Delegate and Tameka Ramsey —
Chairperson of the Charter Revision Commission




August 22, 2023, Draft

Agenda Address
1. Beatrice Wright addressed item #1, salary increase for Alexandra Borngesser (item not on the
agenda that was approved)
2. Kathi Mclnally addressed item #1
3. Quincy Stewart addressed item #28
4. Dr. Deirdre Waterman addressed item #8 and MOU (item not on the agenda that was approved

Councilman Brett Nicholson arrived at 6:30 p.m.

Public Hearing

Council President Mike McGuinness opened a public hearing at 7:14 p.m. on an Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation Application Exemption Certificate for 46 N. Saginaw Street HCP LLC for parcel number
14-29-434-023. There were nine (9) individuals who addressed the body during the public hearing.

1. Billie Swazer — I thought this was the old Pontiac Osteopathic Hospital.
. Chuck Johnson — Developer is trying to bring foot traffic in the downtown area.

3. Beatrice Wright — We are a city of 66% renters. Why don’t you build condominiums? We should
be a city of homeowners.

4. Veronica Taylor — Affordability

Tameka Ramsey — We do need to look at condominiums. I support it.

6. Gloria Miller — Do we know how many people are 11V1ng in hotels with kids. Let’s look at
housing for young people.

7. Cameron Blunt — Habitat homes on street

8. Darlene Clark — Are we pushing residents out if rent is gomg to start at $1,250 a month.

9. Carlton Jones — We can ask for mix use. I do support the development for downtown.

wh

Council President Mike McGuinness closed the public hearing at 7:28 pm

Agenda Items

Ordinances : , ‘

23-302 Resolution to approve the first reading of a Zoning Map Amendment at 121
Orchard Lake Road, from C-1 to M-1 Rezoning,. (First reading) Moved by Councilperson Carrington
and second by Councilperson James.

WHEREAS, before the City of Pontiac City Council for consideration is an Ordinance to amend the City
of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance Map to rezone the 1.6-acre parcel (64-14-10-378-012, 64-14-10-378-013,
64-14-10-378-018, 64-14-10-378-019) at 1075 East Walton Boulevard; specifically, to amend the Zoning
Ordinance Map which list these properties as C-1 Local Business to M-1 Light Manufacturing,
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Council finds it is in the best interest for the health, safety, and
welfare, to reject the Planning Commission’s Recommendation and approve the amendments to the
Zoning Ordinance Map as presented.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that it hereby adopts the first
reading of the amendments as presented to the City Council on August 22, 2023, to the City’s Zoning
Ordinance Map.

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, and Goodman
No: None

Resolution Passed

Councilman Brett Nicholson was absent during the vote.




August 22, 2023, Draft

23-303 Resolution to approve the first reading of a Zoning Map Amendment at 1075 E.
Walton Blvd, from R-1 to C-1 Rezoning. (First reading) Moved by Councilperson Goodman and
second by Councilperson Carrington.

WHEREAS, before the City of Pontiac City Council for consideration is an Ordinance to amend the City
of Pontiac Zoning Ordinance Map to rezone the 2.89-acre parcel (64-14-10-378-012, 64-14-10-378-013,
64-14-10-378-018, 64-14-10-378-019) at 1075 E. Walton Blvd.; specifically, to amend the Zoning
Ordinance Map which list these properties as R-1 One Family Dwelling to C-1 Local Business.
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Council finds it is in the best interest for the health, safety, and
welfare, to reject the Planning Commission’s Recommendation and approve the amendments to the
Zoning Ordinance Map as presented.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Pontiac City Council that it hereby adopts the first
reading of the amendments as presented to the City Council on August 22, 2023, to the City’s Zoning
Ordinance Map. '

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford Carrmgton Goodman, and James
No: None
Resolution Passed

Resolutions

City Council

23-304 Resolution Honoring the Life and Service of Retired Police Chief Larry Miracle.
Moved by Councilperson Carrington and second by Councilperson Parker.

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council would like to pay proper tribute to Larry Miracle an individual of
exemplary character and a consummate professional who worked asmduously to improve the quality of life
for his fellow citizens in numerous capacities; and,

WHEREAS, Larry Miracle, born on May 20, 1955, in Pontiac, Michigan; and,

WHEREAS, Larry Miracle departed this life on July 21, 2023, which is a unexpected loss for the family
and for our community; and,

WHEREAS, Larry Miracle served W1th acumen and alacnty as a member of member of the Pontiac Police
department where he retired as the Chief of Police; and,

WHEREAS, Larry Miracle loved sports as he excelled in basketball, baseball, and football, and was a
member of the of the football team at Eastern Michigan University and,

WHEREAS, Larry Miracle enjoyed the loving companionship of his wife Kimberlee of 46 astonishing
years; and was also deeply devoted to his family, as he always endeavored to remain true to family values
of the highest order; and,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Members of the Pontiac City Council and members of
this great community will greatly miss Larry Miracle as he leaves behind an indelible legacy of integrity
and probity in public life, compassion and loyalty in private life and diligence and dedication in all his
chosen endeavors; and we give our sincerest condolences to the family and friends of Larry Miracle.

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James
No: None
Resolution Passed

Grants

23-305 Resolution to approve the proposed budget amendment to increase budgeted
revenues in the amount of $7,497,100 to account 445-000-539.000-OPDCON, and appropriations
in the amount of $1,250,000 to account 445-451-974.074-OPDCON, $1,565,000 to account 445-463-
974.072-OPDCON, $1,930,000 to account 445-451-974.001-OPDCON, $1,423,500 to account
445-000-539.000-PODCON, and $1,328,600 to account 445-000-539.000-OPDCON to reflect the




August 22, 2023, Draft

Michigan Enhancement Grant. Moved by Councilperson Parker and second by Councilperson
Carrington.

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac was awarded $7,500,000 assigned to the Meadow Street Extension and
Clinton River Trail Expansion Project through the Michigan Economic Development Corporation’s
Enhancement Grant Program; and,

WHEREAS, the grant will allow the City to extend Meadow Drive to connect with Opdyke Road,
extend Clinton River Trail to connect to Murphy Park and to M-59, and to repair the concrete on
Centerpointe Parkway North; and,

WHEREAS, this grant is part of a larger strategic project to acquire at least 40 acres of land to offset the
City’s Park deficit; and,

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council hereby approves the proposed budget
amendment for the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget as requested by the Administration to increase budgeted
revenues in the amount of $7,497,100 to account 445-000-539,000-OPDCON, and appropriations in the
amount of $1,250,000 to account 445-451-974.074-OPDCON, $1,565,000 to account 445-463-974.072-
OPDCON, 1,930,000 to account 445-451-974.001-OPDCON, 1,423,500 to account 445-000-539.000-
OPDCON, and $ 1,328,600 to account 445-000-539. 000-OPDCON to reflect the Michigan
Enhancement Grant.

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, McGumness and Nicholson
No: None
Resolution Passed

23-306 Resolution to approve the proposed budget amendment to established
appropriations in the amount of $41,700 to account 285-699-816.000-ARPCPK for the purpose of
ballfield renovations at Beaudette Park. Moved by Councﬂperson Rutherford and second by
Councilperson Nicholson.

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac was awarded The City of Pontiac was allocated $37.7 million from the
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund (SLFRF) under the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), and;
WHEREAS, the funding provided under ARPA provides a unique oppottunity for state and local
governments to make strategic investments in long-lived assets, rebuild reserves to enhance financial
stability, and cover temporary operatmg shortfalls until economic conditions and operations normalize in
the wake of COVID-19, and;

WHEREAS, the City’s Executive Administration worked to build a programming budget for the use of
its $37,700,000 in SLFRF fundmg that reflects the needs of the community, and,;

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council unanimously approved the Executive Administration’s ARPA
Program Budget on November 10th, 2022, allocating $2,000,000 to establish a park revitalization
program for community parks, and to fund the administration of the program, and;

WHEREAS, in an effort to put ARPA funds into action, and to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19 on
Pontiac residents, the City has established the Pontiac Park Revitalization Program, and;

WHEREAS, the following budget amendment reflects funding for costs associated with urgent repairs
needed to ballfields at Beaudette Park, and;

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council hereby approves the proposed budget
amendment to establish budget appropriations in the amount of $41,700 to account 285-699-816.000-
ARPCPK for the purpose of ballfield renovations at Beaudette Park.

Ayes: Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, and Parker
No: None
Resolution Passed

23-307 Resolution to approve the proposed budget amendment to increase budgeted revenues in
the amount of $12,277.50 to account 101-000-532.000-OAKPSD, and expenditures in the amount of
$12,722.50 to account 101-818-806.001-OAKPSD and $2,722.50 to account 101-818-818.000-




August 22, 2023, Draft

OAKPSD. (This proposed budget amendment relates to the SEMCOG Grant.) Moved by Councilperson
Parker and second by Councilperson Rutherford. Discussion.

Motion to postpone the proposed budget amendment to increase budgeted
revenues in the amount of $12,277.50 to account 101-000-532.000-OAKPSD, and expenditures in
the amount of $12,722.50 to account 101-818-806.001-OAKPSD and $2,722.50 to account 101-818-
818.000-OAKPSD for one week. (This proposed budget amendment relates to the SEMCOG
Grant.) Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Nicholson.

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, and Carrington
No: None
Motion Carried

23-308 Resolution to approve the High Intensity Drug Traﬂ‘icking Area (HIDTA) Sub
Grant Agreement. Moved by Councilperson Nicholson and second by Councilperson Rutherford.

WHEREAS, Oakland County is, the legal entity that administers the Narcotic Enforcement Team (NET)
and it has submitted an Initiative Description and budget proposal to the Executive Board for Michigan
High-Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) requesting the United States Office of National Drug
Control Policy (ONDCP) to grant NET an award for the program year 2023 to reimburse NET
participating agencies for eligible law enforcement officers overtime costs; and, -

WHEREAS, If ONDCP grants NET an award for the program year 2023, the ONDCP disburses the
HIDTA funds to the Michigan State Police (MSP); and,

WHEREAS, The County has the authority to allocate a portion of the grant funds to reimburse a
participating municipality for qualifying overtime costs subject to the terms and conditions of the
agreement; and,

WHEREAS, The City of Pontiac desxres to enter mto the attached sub recxplent agreement between the
city and Oakland County; and, =

WHEREAS, Oakland County Corporate Council and the Clty Executive Branch of the City of Pontiac
have approved the attached sub-recipient agreement.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Pontiac approves the 2023 HIDTA sub-grant
agreement with the Oakland County and authorizes the Mayor to sign on behalf of the City.
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac was awarded $12,277.50 from the Southeast Michigan Council of
Governments Planning Assistance Program; and, ,

WHEREAS, the grant award will fund planning necessary for the Oakland Park Stormwater Drainage
Project; and, -

WHEREAS, the grant award has a match requirement of $2,722.50; and,

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement ends June 30th, 2024.

WHEREAS, the funds from the grant will increase the budgeted revenue for the current fiscal year
2023-2024 in the amount of $12,277.50 for grant income.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the City Council hereby approves the proposed budget
amendment for the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget as requested by the Administration to increase budgeted
revenues in the amount of $12,277.50 to account 101-000-532.000-OAKPSD, and expenditures in the
amount of $12,722.50 to account 101-818-806.001-OAKPSD and $2,722.50 to account 101-818-
818.000-OAKPSD.

Ayes: James, McGuinness, Parker, Carrington, and Goodman
No: Rutherford

Resolution Passed

Councilman Brett Nicholson was absent during the vote.

Mayor’s Office
23-309 Resolution to approve Lowe’s line of credit for $50,000 for Senior Center Project.
Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Carrington.




August 22, 2023, Draft

WHEREAS, The Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase is following the City’s municipal
code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 pertaining to major purchases; and
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Manager is requesting approval to establish a line of credit with Lowe’s up
to a not-to-exceed amount of $91,900.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac City Council approves the Mayor or Mayor
Designee to execute the line of credit application with Lowe’s to purchase appliances for the Ruth
Peterson Senior Center.

Ayes: McGuinness, Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, and James
No: None
Resolution Passed

Purchasing

23-310 Resolution to execute an agreement with DLZ for the completion of a Roads
master Plan for the City of Pontiac. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by
Councilperson Nicholson.

WHEREAS, The Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase is following the City’s municipal
code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519 pertaining to major purchases; and
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Manager is requesting approval to execute a contract with DLZ to complete
the Roads Master Plan no later than November 2023. ,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Pontiac Clty Councﬂ approves the Mayor or Mayor
Designee to execute a contract with DLZ for the Road Master Plan

Ayes: Nicholson, Parker, Rutherford Carrington, Goodman James, and McGuinness
No: None ,

Resolution Passed .

Public Comment
Quincy Stewart
Kevin Stewart
Beatrice Wright
Kathi McInally -
Tameka Ramsey
Dr. Deirdre Waterman
Carlton Jones
Anita Bow
Dawn Hannah
10 Darlene Clark
11. Gloria Miller

©®NA LR WD

Discussion
Better Communicating Road and Parking Closures to Impacted Pontiac Businesses and Residents

Closed Session

23-311 Resolution to proceed into Closed Session at 9:20 p.m. pursuant to MCL
15.268(1)(e), to discuss the pending matter of The City of Pontiac Retired Employees Association, et,
al. v. Louis Schimmel, et. al, United States District Court Case No. 2:12-cv-12380. Moved by
Councilperson Rutherford and second by Councilperson Parker.




August 22, 2023, Draft

WHEREAS, Counsel for the City is requesting a closed session pursuant to MCL 15.268(1)(e) to discuss
the pending matter of The City of Pontiac Retired Employees Association, et. al. v. Louis Schimmel, et.
al., United States District Court Case No. 2:12-cv-12380.

NOW THEREFOR BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council will proceed into Closed Session pursuant to
the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(1)(e) to discuss pending litigation.

Ayes: Parker, Rutherford, Carrington, Goodman, James, and McGuinness
No: None

Resolution Passed

Councilman Brett Nicholson was absent during the vote.

Motion to come out of Closed Session at 10:16 p.m Moved by Councilperson
Goodman and second by Councilperson Parker.

Ayes: Goodman, James, McGuinness, Nicholson, and Parker
No: None

Motion Carried

Councilman William Carrington was absent during the vote:
Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford was absent during the vote.

Communications
City Council and Mayor’s Office

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments

Councilman William Parker Jr., Councilwoman Kathalee James, Councﬂman Mikal Goodman,
Councilman Brett Nicholson, Councﬂwoman Melame Rutherford and Council President Mike
McGuinness made closing comments. ~

Adjournment ‘ :
‘Motion to adjourn the meeting. Moved by Councilperson Rutherford and second by
Councilperson Nicholson,

Ayes: James, McGuinnéss, Nicholson, Parker, and Rutherford

No: None
Motion Carried

Council President Mike McGuinness adjourn the meeting at 10:36 p.m.

Garland S. Doyle
City Clerk



- CONSENT
AGENDA

B




PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL FACILITIES AND PROPERTY SUBCOMMITTEE
August 25, 2023 Meeting Minutes
Held at Pontiac City Hall Legislative Conference Room

In Attendance: Councilwoman Melanie Rutherford, Chair; Council President Mike
McGuinness; Council President Pro Tem William Carrington, City Council Chief of Staff
Sherikia Hawkins, Mayor Tim Greimel, Public Works Director Al Cooley III, Public
Works Deputy Director Patrick Muller, Community Development Director Rachel
Loughrin, Economic Development Manager Deborah Younger, Steve Sack of Hubbell
Roth & Clark, Regina Campbell of Ginasis Construction, Members of the Public: Joseph
Clark, Mike Pena, Fortino Ybarra, Rolando Ybarra

CALL TO ORDER - Meeting Called to Order at 3:00 p.m.

STATUS UPDATES DISCUSSED

L City-Owned Real Estate Disposition Policy

II.  Kennett Road Landfill Property Next Steps

II.  Carlisle Townhomes Brownfield Request

IV.  Facilities Condition Assessments Status

V. Public Works Facility Search, Current Status

VI.  Youth Recreation Center Next Steps

VII. Senior Center Improvements Status

VIII. Cemeteries Requests for Proposals, Projects Status
IX.  University Drive Facility Demolition, Cleanup

X. Perdue School Demolition, Cleanup, and Next Steps
XI.  City Hall Current, Future Facility Needs

XII. Facilities-Related Staffing Capacity Needs

XIII. Sheriff Substation Facility Work Status

XIV. District Courthouse Facility Work Status

NEW BUSINESS ITEMS - None

PUBLIC COMMENT —Rolando Ybarra, Fortino Ybarra, and Mike Pena, who each are
active with the Pontiac Skatepark Project, each spoke in support of naming the new Pontiac
Skatepark at Oakland Park in honor of the late Roberto Duran Rodriguez
ADJOURNMENT - Meeting Adjourned at 4:00 p.m.

NEXT MEETING - Friday, September 29, 2023 at 3:00 p.m.

Page 1 of 1




CONSENT
AGENDA

C




PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL ‘
COMMUNICATIONS, ENGAGEMENT, AND OPERATIONS SUBCOMMITTEE
August 25, 2023 Meeting Minutes

Held at Pontiac City Hall Legislative Conference Room

In Attendance: Councilman Mikal Goodman, Chair; Council President Mike
McGuinness; Council President Pro Tem William Carrington; City Council Chief of Staff
Sherikia Hawkins, Mayor Tim Greimel, Cody MacPhee (IT), Ken Martin (IT), Phil Brown
(Cable), Jake Jefferson (Communications)

CALL TO ORDER - Meeting Called to Order at 3:06 p.m.

STATUS UPDATES DISCUSSED

j—

Communications Department Initiatives

fa}
fan)

Cable Operations Initiatives

o
o
ll_‘

Information Technology Initiatives
Community Engagement Strategies
Council Operations Updates

Upcoming Related Budgetary Needs

S EKFE

Status of Related Staffing Needs

NEW BUSINESS ITEMS — None

PUBLIC COMMENT -The opportunity None

ADJOURNMENT — Meeting Adjourned at 5:03 p.m.

Page 1 0of 1




CONSENT
AGENDA

D




CITY OF PONTIAC RESOLUTION

Changing Compensation Level for Pontiac
Grants and Philanthropy Director Position

Whereas, the current compensation level for the City of Pontiac Grants and
Philanthropy Director position is a $108,150.12 annual salary; and,

Whereas, the City of Pontiac Grants and Philanthropy Department is critical to
expanding the resources of the City in order to provide increased city services and
improved quality of life for Pontiac residents; and,

Whereas, the Grants and Philanthropy Department has experienced an exponential
increase in responsibilities, initiatives, compliance requirements, and grants funding
awarded from federal, state, county, and philanthropic sources; now,

Therefore, Be It Resolved, the Pontiac City Council instructs Pontiac Mayor Tim
Greimel to increase the City of Pontiac Grants and Philanthropy Director position’s
annual salary to $115,000; and further

Resolved, the City Council requests the Mayor to determine whether a budget
amendment is needed to ensure adequate appropriations in the impacted General
Ledger accounts and prepare a budget amendment for consideration by the City Council
if it is determined to be needed for implementation of this compensation level change;
and further

Resolved, the City Council requests a formal written update from the Mayor on the
implementation of the position’s salary change by September 30, 2023.

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL ® Pontiac, Michigan ~®  August 29, 2023

Mike McGuinness, Council President William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem
Mikal Goodman, Councilmember Kathalee James, Councilmember
Brett Nicholson, Councilmember William Parker, Jr., Councilmember

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember




#3
RESOLUTION




PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION
HONORING THE LIFE AND SERVICE
OF
ERNIE ALLEN SR.

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council would like to pay proper tribute to Ernie
Allen, an individual of exemplary character and a excellent professional who
worked assiduously to improve the quality of life for his fellow citizens in
numerous capacities; and,

WHEREAS, Ernie Allen, born on October 1, 1937, and grew up in Port Allen,
Louisiana; and later moved to Pontiac, Michigan and,

WHEREAS, Ernie Allen, departed this life on July 17, 2023, which was a major
loss for the family and for our community; and,

WHEREAS, Ernie Allen, served as the Secretary for the City of Pontiac’s Charter
Revision Commission, and during the 1980’s served as a City Councilman for
District Six and;

WHEREAS, Ernie Allen, proudly served as the Deputy Mayor from 1995-2001
and,

WHEREAS, Ernie Allen, enjoyed the loving companionship of his wife Willa,
whom he affectionately called his “better half” years; and prided himself on
being a family man; and,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Members of the Pontiac City
Council and members of this great community will greatly miss Ernie Allen as
he leaves behind an indelible legacy of integrity and probity in public life,
compassion and loyalty in private life and diligence and dedication in all his
chosen endeavors; and we give our sincerest condolences to the family and
friends of Ernie Allen.

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL Pontiac, Michigan e August 29, 2023

Mike McGuinness, Council President William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem
Mikal Goodman, Councilmember Kathalee James, Councilmember
Brett Nicholson, Councilmember William Parker, Jr., Councilmember

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember




#4
RESOLUTION




PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION
HONORING
THE PONTIAC SCHOOL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council takes great pleasure in recognizing the
recent accomplishments of the Pontiac School District Board of Education; and,

WHEREAS, The Pontiac School District Board of Education was recently
recognized by the Michigan Association of School Boards (MASB) by earning its
Honor Board Designation; and,

WHEREAS, this distinctive honor is given to boards annually who have
achieved full certification status, meaning all board members have completed
and attainted their certification; and,

WHEREAS, this prestigious designation is only achieved by a few boards across
the state each year and;

WHEREAS, we honor the commitment to excellence by Pontiac School District
board members, Gill Garrett, G. Kevin Gross, Anisha Hannah, Marcus Terry,
Kenyada Bowman, ShaQuana Davis Smith, and Troy Craft; and,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Members of the Pontiac City
Council recognizes the tireless work that the Pontiac School Board of Education
has exhibited, and we express our sincerest appreciation.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the members of the Pontiac City Council
are very proud of the Pontiac School Board’s achievement and grateful for the
commitment to the important role they play in the success of the school district.

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL e Pontiac, Michigan e August 29, 2023

Mike McGuinness, Council President William A. Carrington, President Pro Tem
Mikal Goodman, Councilmember Kathalee James, Councilmember
Brett Nicholson, Councilmember William Parker, Jr., Councilmember

Melanie Rutherford, Councilmember




#S
RESOLUTION




The HEART of Ozkland Counsy

Department of Public Works OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Pontiac City Council and Council President

FROM: Patrick Muller, Deputy Director of Public Works
Allen H. Cooley, lll, Director of Public Works

CC: Mayor Tim Greimel and Deputy Mayor Khalfani Stephens

DATE:  August 23, 2023

RE: The Purchasing Manager and the Department of Public Works (DPW)
Director request that City Council approves to execute an agreement
with DLZ for the replacement of the Sheriff Building cooling tower for the
City of Pontiac.

City Council approved the resolution for DLZ to provide Architectural and Engineering Services
for a not to exceed amount of $75,000 during the April 4, 2023, Council session. Purchasing used
the State of Michigan’s MiDeal Cooperative Purchasing Program — Contract No. 00876 to comply
with the City’s ordinance as it pertains to bidding requirements. The purchasing manager and
DPW director is requesting that City Council Approving the execution of a contract for DLZ to
complete the Sheriff Building cooling tower replacement will total a not-to-exceed amount of
$55,000, which will bring the total spend for DLZ to $185,000.

According to Pontiac Code Section 2-523, the City may use cooperative purchasing when the
Purchasing Agent or the City Council deems it to be in the “best interest of the City”. The
ordinance further permits that when bids are received through such cooperatives, the advertising
and bidding requirements are deemed to have been met.

WHEREAS, The Purchasing Manager has ensured that the purchase is following the City’s
municipal code, Division II. Purchasing, Section 2-517, 2-518, and 2-519
pertaining to major purchases; and

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Manager is requesting approval to execute a contract with DLZ to
complete the replacement of the Sheriff Building cooling tower no later than
November 2023;

NOW, THEREFORE
IT IS RESOLVED: The Pontiac City Council approves the Mayor or Mayor Designee to execute a
contract with DLZ for the replacement of the Sheriff Building cooling tower.




g_“ ' INNOVATIVE IDEAS
% EXCEPTIONAL DESIGN

ARCHITECTURE * ENGINEERING * PLANNING UNMATCHED CLIENT SERVICE
SURVEYING + CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

July 7, 2023

Mr. Al Cooley Il

Director of Public Works
City of Pontiac

47450 Woodward Avenue
Pontiac, Ml 48342

Re: Letter of Agreement to Provide Professional Architectural and Engineering Services for the City of
Pontiac, Sheriff Building Cooling Tower Replacement; 110 East Pike Street, Pontiac, Ml
Using the State of Michigan MiDeal Program

Dear Mr. Cooley:

DLZ Michigan, Inc. (DLZ) is pleased to submit this proposal to you for providing Architectural and Engineering
Services at the City of Pontiac {City) Sheriff Building 110 East Pike Street, Pontiac, Ml for cooling tower replacement.
As you are aware, the State of Michigan operates an extended purchasing program that allows cities to buy goods
and services from State contracts. This program has been authorized by the Michigan legislature since 1984.
Members of the MiDEAL program benefit directly from the reduced cost of goods and services and indirectly by
eliminating the time needed to process bids, DLZ has been selected by the State for design and construction services
through the MiDEAL program under Contract No. 00876. We are very proud of our record of service as it relates to
cost and performance on the assignments that we have undertaken.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT
It is understood that the City would like to proceed with professional architecture and engineering design services
associated with Capital Improvements, including the following scope of work:
1) HVAC Improvements:
a. Installation of a new roof mounted cooling tower (owner prepurchase).
b. Decommission cooling tower and abandon in place; blank-off and seal louvers.
c. Alternate: Removal of existing cooling tower {enclosure to remain) including removal of louvers
and infilling opening.
d. Replacement of condenser water piping back to mechanical equipment room (basement).
e. Replacement of condenser water pumps; replacement is dependent on operating characteristics
of new cooling tower,
f. Associated structural and electrical modifications for equipment replacements.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The City has selected DLZ as one of its preferred vendors for Engineering Services. Services will be performed
utilizing DLZ’s ISID MIiDEAL Agreement #00876, dated April 16, 2021. Under this contract, DLZ will be assigned the
oversight and management of multiple departmental activities as a supplement to the existing staff. The initial
scope of work, as identified below, is expected to include activities within Phase 100-700 of the MiDEAL contract.

Per our discussion, it is our understanding that the City is seeking architectural and engineering services for the City
of Pontiac Sheriff Building Cooling Tower Replacement. The proposed services include, at a minimum, the following:

4494 Elizabeth Lake Rd, Waterford Township, Ml 48328 I OFFICE 248.681.7800 l ONLINE WWW.DLZ.COM

Akron Bellefontalne Bridgeville Burns Harbor Chicago Cinclnnati Cleveland Columbus Detroit Fort Wayne Grand Rapids Indlanapolis Joliet
Kalamazoo Knoxville Lansing Lexington Logan Madison Maumee Melvindale Merrillville Munster Muskegon Port Huron Saint Joseph San
José South Bend Waterford




City of Pontiac

T ildi
« INNOVATIVE IDEAS Building Department
N5V EXCEPTIONAL DESIGN July 7, 2023
Page 2 of 5
ARCHITECTURE « ENGINEERING » PLANNING UNMATCHED CLIENT SERVICE g
SURVEYING * CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

1) Data Collection

a. Meet with City representatives on site to discuss project goals and priorities and to determine
minimum criteria for each space.

b. Each design discipline to make one (1} site visit and field verify existing building systems that may be
impacted by the proposed scope of work.

c. Field measure portions of the existing building to field verify critical dimensions and information
within the original building drawings.

d. Develop a base model to be used as a background for project development.

2) Design Development

a) Prepare preliminary engineering drawings including structural, mechanical, and electrical plans.

b) Perform engineering calculations to validate appropriate equipment selection and system design.

c) Provide cut sheets for preliminary material and product selections.

d) Perform structural analysis and design (as required) to strengthen the existing concrete structure
for support of the new cooling tower.

e) Conducta design review meeting with City representatives for design approval prior to proceeding
with the subsequent design phase.

f) Prepare Opinion of Probable Construction Costs based upon design development documents,

3) Construction Documents

a) Prepare Construction Documents to include final structural, mechanical, and electrical drawings.

b) Prepare Project Manual including Division 00-01 General Conditions and Division 02-33 Technical
Specifications.

¢} Construction Documents shall be prepared as a single bid package for a single prime contractor as
required for a public bid process.

d} Update Opinion of Probable Construction Costs based upon final design documents.

e} Submit Construction Documents to local authority having jurisdiction (AHJ) for review. Application
fee to be billed as a direct reimbursable expense (not included in below fee).

4) Bidding
a) Conduct a pre-bid meeting on-site for prospective bidders to review the scope of work.
b) Prepare an Advertisement of Bid for public publication.
c) Distribute PDF format Contract Documents for access by prospective Bidders.
d) Respond to Bidder’s Requests for Information (RFI’s} during Bidding phase, in the form of an
Addendum.
e) Assist the City during the opening of Bids.
f) Review bids received and provide a recommendation letter for Award of Construction Contract.

5) Construction Administration
a)} Conduct a pre-construction meeting to outline roles, responsibilities, and lines of communications.
b) Review shop drawings and submittals related to the design.
¢} Respond to Contractor’s Request for Information (RFI’s) during construction.




City of Pontiac

i e\ o
P M INNOVATIVE IDEAS Building Department
' EXCEPTIONAL DESIGN July 7, 2023
Page 3 of 5

ARCHITECTURE « ENGINEERING + PLANNING UNMATCHED CLIENT SERVICE
SURVEYING + CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

d) Perform site visits an average of bi-weekly to review construction progress and overall conformance
with the Contract Documents. Conduct two (2) site visits during construction activity; prepare field
observation reports for each site visit.

e) Conduct progress meetings and prepare meeting minutes; average of one meeting per month, up to
four (4) progress meetings are anticipated.

f) Review Contractor Payment Applications and make recommendations for payment.

g) Perform one Substantial Completion walk-through and one Final Completion walk-through.

h) Review Contractor’s Project Closeout documents including review of O&M Manuals, Warranties,
and Contractor’s “As-Built” Record Drawings.

OPTIONAL/ADDITIONAL SERVICES
The items listed below are NOT included in the fee and may be added as required or requested:
1) Professional Services beyond those defined in the Scope of Services.
2) Preparation of Record Documents (As-Built Drawings to be provided by Contractor).
3) Environmental Services.
4) Detailed cost estimating. A construction manager or independent cost estimator may be engaged as
an additional service if detailed cost estimating is necessary.
5) LEED Certification and/or specialized sustainable design features.
6) Preparation of applications and paperwork for utility rebates.
7) Additional meetings or site visits, beyond the quantity identified in the Scope of Services.
8) GPR, material testing, or destructive testing to determine existing structural reinforcing or material
properties.
9) Extensive measurement for the purpose of determining as-built conditions and geometry.
10) Structural analysis/design for the purpose of checking or bringing the existing structural system up
to current code except within the vicinity of the new cooling tower.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1) Services will be consistent with those customarily performed for similar projects of this nature, as
defined by DLZ’s ISID MiDEAL Agreement #00876.

2) Correspondence and documentation shall utilize standard AIA documents and/or DLZ format.
Deliverables will be provided electronically in a .pdf file format.

3) Documented conditions are only valid at locations observed. DLZ makes no representation
concerning conditions unless stated in writing.

4) The City shall provide a copy of all applicable documents related to the building including existing
drawings, previous reports, and maintenance records.

5) Plan review fees are not included as they are indeterminate at this time. If DLZ is required to pay
plan review fee(s), they shall be reimbursed by the City as a direct expense.

6) The City shall provide assistance from facilities maintenance staff as needed to access and verify
existing conditions, including any ladders or lifts required to access elevated portions of the
building.

7) DLZ is not responsible for Contractor’s safety compliance; jobsite safety will be solely the
Contractor’s responsibility.




City of Pontiac

TR ildi
P INNOVATIVE IDEAS Building Department
4 EXCEPTIONAL DESIGN July 7, 2023
Page 4 of 5

ARCHITECTURE * ENGINEERING « PLANNING UNMATCHED CLIENT SERVICE
SURVEYING ¢« CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

8) We assume the project will require mobilization twice (not multiple phases of construction); once
for installation of the new cooling tower (independent of season) and once for piping replacement
and tower switchover (work not to be completed during cooling season). We assume the project
can be completed within 5 weeks after first mobilization and 7 weeks after second mobhilization, If
required, additional site visits will be documented and invoiced at an hourly rate.

SCHEDULE

For services as described herein, DLZ is prepared to start this project immediately upon receipt of a signed
Agreement. The following preliminary schedule has been developed as a general guideline; actual durations and
dates may vary as the project develops:

Task Duration Anticipated Completion Date
1. | Notice to Proceed - Anticipated +/- July 21, 2023
2 Data Collection +/- 2 weeks +/- August 4, 2023
3 Design Development / Prepurchase Package 100% +/- 3 weeks +/- August 25, 2023
4. | Owner Review +/- 1 week +/- September 1, 2023
5. | 90% Construction Documents +/- 2 weeks +/- September 15, 2023
6. | Owner Review +/- 1 week +/- September 22, 2023
7 100% Construction Documents +/- 1 week +/- September 29, 2023
8 Bidding & Award +/- 3 weeks +/- October 20, 2023

9a. | Construction Administration 1%t Mobilization +/- 5 weeks +/- November 24, 2023

9b. | Construction Administration 2" Mobilization +/- 7 weeks +/- January 12, 2023
10. | Final Completion and Project Closeout +/- 3 weeks +/- February 2, 2024

SERVICE FEE

For professional design services described herein, DLZ proposes a lump sum fee in the amount of $55,000. Payment
will be made monthly in proportion to services completed during the billing period. The Terms and Conditions of
DTMB ISID MiDeal Contract #00876, dated April 16, 2021, are incorporated here into and made a part of this Work
Order Proposal. Additional Services not included herein may be performed on an hourly-rate basis with
authorization from the CITY. If authorized, Additional Services shall be invoiced using the Standard Rate Schedule of
ISID MiDEAL Contract #00876, per Exhibit A.

Services under this agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days written notice. In the event
of termination, CITY will pay DLZ for all services and reimbursable expenses rendered to the date of termination.
If you approve and accept this Proposal, please sign, date, and return one copy of this Proposal for our records.
Should you prefer to issue a Purchase Order as your official acceptance, we request that you reference this Proposal
in your paperwork.

DLZ appreciates the consideration for the proposed professional services. This offer will remain open for acceptance
for 60 days. If for any reason you should have questions, please do not hesitate to call Shannon Filarecki, P.E. at (248)
681-7800.




City of Pontiac

f \‘ N .
@ INNOVATIVE IDEAS Building Department
& EXCEPTIONAL DESIGN July 7, 2023
Page 5 of 5

ARCHITECTURE * ENGINEERING * PLANNING UNMATCHED CLIENT SERVICE
SURVEYING * CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

CLOSING

We trust the enclosed Letter of Agreement satisfactorily sets forth your understanding of Professional Services
required for this project. Upon review and approval, please sign, date and return one copy to our office; thank you
again for this opportunity. Should you have any questions or need any additional information, please do not hesitate
to contact our office.

Very truly yours, AGREED AND ACCEPTED
DLZ Michigan, Inc. City of Pontiac, Michigan

Manoj Sethi, P.E.
President

Enclosures:
Exhibit A: Standard Rate Schedule of ISID Contract #00876




PSC-AE ISID Billing Rate
Rev 01/15/2021

=l
Technology, Management & Budget

STATE OF MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF TECHNOLOGY, MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

This contract authorizes the professional services contractor to provide professional services.
(Authority; Public Act 431 of 1984, as amended)

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: Indefinite Scope — Indefinite Delivery
Billing Rate ~ Not to Exceed

THIS CONTRACT, authorized this 16t day of April in the year two-thousand and twenty-one (2021), by the Director, Department of Technology,
Management and Budget, BETWEEN the STATE OF MICHIGAN acting through the STATE FACILITIES ADMINISTRATION, DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION DIVISION of the DEPARTMENT OF TECHNOLOGY, MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET, 3111 West St. Joseph Street, Lansing,
Michigan, hereinafter called the Department, and

DLZ Michigan, Inc.
1425 Keystone Avenue
Lansing, M 48911

the Prime Professional Services Contractor, hereinafter called the Professional,
WHEREAS the Department proposes securing professional services FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT:

Indefinite-Scope, Indefinite-Delivery Contract No. 00876

Department of Technology, Management and Budget

State Facilities Administration, Design and Construction Division

Professional Architectural and Engineering Indefinite-Scope, Indefinite Delivery Contract (ISID) for Minor Projects -
Various State Departments and Facilities

Various Site Locations, Michigan

Provide professional services, technical staff, and support personnel for ISID minor projects on an as-needed basis at various State/Client
Agencies within various locations as defined by the State of Michigan. These various ISID minor projects may include projects where the
construction costs are between fifteen-thousand dollars ($15,000) and five-hundred-thousand dollars ($500,000) for this Contract.

This Contract is for professional design services for an unspecified number of ISID projects. The scope of work for each assigned project wilt be
defined at the time the project is awarded by the State to the Professional firm. The professional services required for each of these assigned
projects requested by the Department may include any or all the Tasks included in the Phase 100 - Study through the Phase 700 ~ Construction
text of the Department’s Standard Professional Services Contract.

The Professional firm's services shall be performed in strict accordance with this Professional Services Contract and follow the Department's
approved and attached Project/Program Statement.

This Contract does not warrant or imply to the Professional design firm entitlement to perform any specific percentage (%) amount of
compensation, work, or projects during the life of this four (4) year Contract.

This Contract will remain in effect for four (4) years from the date of this Contract award but may be unilaterally terminated by the State of
Michigan at any time, for cause or its convenience, by written notification of the State, to the Professional. Furthermore, this Contract may be
extended for one (1) additional year, at the sole option and discretion of the State upon the Department providing written notice to the Professional
prior to the expiration of the original four {4) year Contract period. Any such time extension shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this
Contract, including, but not limited to, the existing hourly billing rates included in this Contract for the Professional, their Consultant, and their
employees or agents.




Please note that for this Professional Services Contract your permanent assigned ISID Contract No., as noted on page 1 of this
contract, must be provided on all Project correspondence and documents.

The Professional is not to provide any professional services or incur expenses until individual [SID Projects are assigned to this Contract. (See
Article 2 — Compensation and the Project/Program Statement attached to this Contract.)

NOW THEREFORE, the Department and the Professional in consideration of the covenants of this Contract agree as follows:

l The Professional shall provide the services for the assigned Project in the study, design, and construction administration, Phase and
Task sequence provided in this Professional Services Contract and to the extent authorized by the Department of Technology,
Management and Budget State Facilities Administration (SFA), Design and Construction Division (DCD) [Department] and be solely
responsible for such professional services. The Professional's services shall be performed in strict accordance with this Professional
Services Contract and follow the Project/Program Statement.

I, The State of Michigan shall compensate the Professional for providing their professional architectural and/or engineering study, design,
and construction administration services for the Project in accordance with the conditions of this Professional Services Contract.

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, each of the parties has caused this Professional Services Contract to be executed in blue ink, a scanned
digital signature is also acceptable, by its duly authorized representatives on the dates shown beside their respective signatures,
with the Contract to be effective upon the date on which the Professional received an electronic copy executed by the authorized
State of Michigan representative(s) by electronic mail.

FOR THE PROFESSIONAL:
DLZ Michigan, Inc. CVv0016067
Firm Name ({ b SIGMA Vendor Number
i N/
'ﬂ»ﬂ / 4/29/21
Signature Date
President
Title
FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN:
4/29/2021
Director,(\%T%B, State Facilities Administration Date




WHEREAS this Professional Services Contract constitutes the entire agreement as to the Project between the parties, any Contract
Modification of this Contract and the Department's approved and attached Project/Program Statement scope of work requirements
must be in writing, signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties, and shall be in such format and detail as the State may
require. No Contract Modification may be entered into to compensate the Professional for correcting, or for responding to claims
or litigation for, the Professional firm's final design Contract Documents/architectural and engineering design errors, omissions, or
neglect on the part of the Professional.

ARTICLE |
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SCOPE OF WORK

The Professional shalf provide all professional services, technical staff, and support personnel necessary to achieve the Project as described in
its Project/Program Statement, in the best interest of the State, and be within the Professional’s fee(s) herein authorized by the State. Assigned
project services shall comprise, without exception, every professional discipline and expertise necessary to meet all the requirements as
described in the Project/Program Statement and be in accordance with the accepted industry standards for professional practice and services.
The Professional's services include attendance at all Project related meetings and conferences. Professional services for the assigned projects
under this contract shall be provided in the Phase/Task sequence shown below and shall be rendered in accordance with the Professional’s
proposed and approved Project Study, Design, and Proposed Construction Schedule. The Professional’s study, design and proposed
construction schedule shall be detailed, undated, and time sequence related for all Phase/Task services appropriate for the Project. The
Professional shall field-check and verify the accuracy of all study/drawing and any data furnished by the Department, the State/Client Agency or
any other Project related source. The Professional shall not employ or consult with any firms in completing the Professional’s obligations herein
who it anticipates will be a construction Bidder for the Project or any part thereof, unless specifically authorized, in writing, by the Department.
The Professional acknowledges that the Department is the first interpreter of the Professional’s performance under this Contract.

The Professional acknowledges by signing this Professional Services Contract having a clear understanding of the requested Project and of the
professional study, design and construction administration services required by the Department to provide it, and further agrees that the terms
and conditions of this Professional Services Contract provide adequate professional fee(s) for the Professicnal to provide the requested Project
scope of work requirements for each assigned project. No increase in fee to the Professional will be allowed unless there is a material change
made to the Project as described in its Project/Program Statement and the change in scope to the Project/Program Statement is accepted and
approved in writing, by the Project Director and the Professional. Professional services shall not be performed, and no Project expenses shall
be incurred by the Professional prior to the issuance of a written and signed Professional Services Contract and a Contract Order authorizing
the Professional to start the Project work. Compensation for Department directed changes to the Project will be provided to the Professional by
a Contract Medification and/or Contract Change Crder signed by the Department and the Professional. The preparation of Bulletins and Contract
Change Orders resulting from increases in the Project scope of work or previously unknown on-site field conditions will be compensated to the
Professional, as approved by the Project Director, on an hourly billing rate basis in accordance with this article. This compensation shall not
exceed seven and half percent (7.5%) of the Construction Contractor’s quotation for the Bulletin or Contract Change Order or an amount mutually
agreed upon by the Professional and the Project Director.

The Professional shall immediately inform the Department whenever it is indicated that the Professional’s authorized not-to-exceed Budget for
any of the assigned Projects may be exceeded. The Professional shall make recommendations to the Department for revisions to bring the
Project Cost back to the Professional's original authorized Budget amount. Any revision to the Project must be accepted and approved by the
Department in writing.

The professicnal services may also include participation in legislative presentations as described in the “Major Project Design Manual for
Professional Services Contractors and State/Client Agencies” and as the legislature or the Department may prescribe.

No substitution of any “Key Principal Personnel/Employee” essential for the successful completion of the Project and identified in the
Professional's Organizational Chart will be allowed by the Professional for this Contract without the prior written consent from the Project Director.
Before any “Key Principal Personnel/Employee” substitution takes place, the Professional shall submit a written request to the Project Director,
and this substitution request shall include the following information: (1) A request in writing for a No Cost Contract Modification; (2) Detailed
written justification for this substitution; (3) The Professional’s qualifications of any proposed “Key Principal Personnel/Employee” replacement;
and (4) A written statement from the Professional assuring the Department that the Project scope of work will not be adversely affected by this
substitution. This request to modify their Professional Services Contract must be accepted and approved in writing by the Project Director and
the Director of the Department, The Department will designate an individual to serve as the Project Director for the Project scope of work who
shall be fully acquainted with the Project/Program Statement and have the authority to render Project decisions and furnish information promptly.
Except in connection with issues under the Article Xlf - Contract Claims and Disputes text, the Project Director will exercise general management
and administration for the Professional’s services in so far as they affect the interest of the State. The Professional shall indemnify, defend, and
hold harmless the State against exposure to claims arising from delays, negligence, or delinquencies by the Professional for the professional
services of this Contract.




During the construction administration services of the Project, the Professional shall be required to complete and submit, the on-site Inspection
record form titled “DTMB-0452, The Professional's Inspection Record" for all on-site Inspection visits to the Project site. The Professional’s
Inspection Record shall be completed and signed by the Professional and submitted monthly, with the original document sent to the Project
Director and copies sent to the State/Client Agency and Construction Contractor. The Professional's Inspection Record shall accompany the
Professional’s monthly submitted payment request.

The “DTMB-0460, Project Procedures” documents package containing Department forms for use during construction administration shall be
used by the Professional in the administration of this Contract. All professional services will be consistent with the Department’s current "Major
Project Design Manual for Professional Services Contractors and State/Client Agencies" unless otherwise approved in writing by the Department.

The professional services required for each Phase of this Contract shall be performed by the Prime Professional and their Consultants in
accordance with service descriptions in this article. The following service descriptions outlined in this Contract represents the Department's
standard of care method for describing the Professional’s responsibilities for providing the professional services of this Contract, but by inclusion,
or omission, do not limit or exclude any regular or normal professional services necessary to accomplish the Project and be in accordance with
the approved Project Budget and the industries accepted practice and standards for professional services. However, all the services outlined in
this Contract may or may not be applicable to the Project/Program Statement and will require the Professional to identify only the services that
are applicable for the Project at hand. The Professional shall determine and coordinate the interface of the services required for the Project at
hand and be responsible for identifying any additional services necessary to successfully complete their Project.

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control in the State of Michigan is regulated under the 1994 Public Act 451, as amended -~ The Natural
Resources and Environmental Protection Act, Part 91 ~ Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control. Soit Erosion and Sedimentation Control
associated with this Contract will be monitored and enforced by the Department.

The professional services may also include participation in legistative presentations as described in the “Major Project Design Manual for
Professional Services Contractors and State/Client Agencies” and as the legislature or the Department may prescribe.

The following professional services, if they become necessary and essential for completing the Project, will be individually rendered by the
Professional, only upon specific written authorization by the Department and the Project Director to the Professional and for the purpose and to
the extent so authorized.

Should litigation occur as a result of this Project, only if through no fauit of the Professional, the Professional firm shall be compensated by the
Department on an actual hourly billing rate basis at the rate set forth in this Contract by a Contract Modification and/or Contract Change Order,
if required to assist the Department of Attorney General, State Affairs Division in providing the professional services necessary during litigation.

LITIGATION: The Professional shall provide all information, presentations, depositions, testimony as “expert witness”, and similar or related
services, on behalf of the Department, as may be required in relation to the professional services of the study, design and construction of this
Project.

ACCOUNTING: The Professional shall provide ali specialized categorizations and distributions of the costs of study, design and construction
services, construction costs, and operational costs, as may be required according to purpose specific parameters.

PUBLIC AWARENESS: The Professional shall provide all design and construction related services to assist in and make presentations of the
professional services of the study, design, construction and operational aspects of the Projects as may be required for public meetings, hearings,
and similar informational activities.

PHASE 100 - STUDY PHASE

Provide a complete and comprehensive architectural and/or engineering study consistent with the Project/Program Statement,
with itemized construction cost estimates.

Task 101 COORDINATION: Meet with the Project Team and define all areas of investigation. Establish Project Team
responsibilities and lines of communications. Review the status of the study efforts with the Project Team at
such frequency and times as may be required to achieve the Project objectives.

Present study documents to the State/Client Agency and the Department for their review at the 50 percent and

90 percent completion intervals and at such other times as the Department deems necessary to completely
develop and monitor the Project.

4




Task 102

Task 103

Task 110

Preside at all Project related meetings and prepare and distribute minutes of all meetings, reports of on-site
visitations, correspondence, memaranda, telephone, and other conversations or communications. Where
essential or significant information is established or evaluated, and/or critical decisions are made, whether in
meetings, conversation or email correspondence, include that information or decisions in formal project
correspondence and distribute copies to the Project Team within two (2) business days of the date of
occurrence, or include such information and decisions in the immediately subsequent project meeting minutes.
Meeting minutes shall be distributed within five (5) business days of the meeting.

RESEARCH: Gather and/or develop all data to evaluate and clarify the Project. Research existing data, analyze
and refine the concepts of the Project/Program Statement. Through discussions with the Project Team, by
interrogation and necessary counsel, establish, in requisite detail, the information required to complete the
Study incorporating functional and operations needs of the State/Client Agency's respective program(s), as
well as operational factors, maintenance, and other support features. Identify all additional research, studies,
and analysis necessary to express such objectives and requirements in terms of a fully operable facility or system
which will acceptably serve its intended use.

ANALYSIS: Analyze data, information and research gathered. Create draft recommendations or results of the
study and research. Upon completicn of all on-site field investigation activities prepare a complete architectural
and/or engineering study report. If appropriate, provide itemized construction cost estimates. The analysis will
correlate, describe, and recard research findings and information for the Project Team’s understanding and
acceptance. Transcribe and consolidate alf existing data, studies, and the research analysis of Task 102 into
a draft study report. Submit one (1) electronic copy in indexed PDF format of the draft study report to the Project
Team at 50 percent and 90 percent completion review intervals and solicit review comments.

STUDY REPORT: Incorporate the study review comments as directed by the Department into the final study
report, Prepare and attend presentations to the Project Team and others for Study acceptance. The final report
shall use the following cutline and contain such detail as required for the Project Team's understanding and
acceptance.

Management Summary

Problem

Research Findings, Discussion and Details
Conclusion

Recommendation

moow>»

Provide one reproducible original and an electronic copy suitable for legible reproduction. One study report presentation shall be
considered basic services for this Task. Any additional study report presentations requested by the Department will be considered
extra professional services and the additional study costs will be paid to the Professional by the Department with a Contract Change

Order.

PHASE 200 - PROGRAM

Amplify the Project/Program Statement and, if available, final Study Report, to embody the physical, functional, and programmatic
relationships required to achieve the Project cbjectives. The resultant program analysis, when accepted and approved by the
Department, shall create the general scope of wark of the Project. Such acceptance does not limit subsequent inclusion of minor,
but essential, programmatic or design details whose necessity and arrangement may best become apparent during subsequent
Phases of the Project's evolution.

Task 201

COORDINATION: Meet with the Project Team and establish lines of communication, authority, and
responsibility. Establish a method for the Department and the State/Client Agency to formally sign off on data
input, the program analysis, and appropriate elements of the resultant design.

Present proposed program analysis documents to the Project Team for review at the 50 percent and 90 percent
completion intervals and at such other times as the Department deems necessary to completely develop and
monitor the Project.




Task 202

Task 203

Task 209

Task 210

Preside at all Project related meetings and prepare and distribute minutes of all meetings, reports of on-site
visitations, correspondence, memoranda, telephone, and other conversations or communications.

Where essential or significant information is established or evaluated, and/or critical decisions are made,
whether in meetings, conversation or email correspondence, include that information or decisions in formal
project correspondence and distribute copies to the Project Team within two (2) business days of the date of
occurrence, or include such information and decisions in the immediately subsequent project meeting minutes.
Meeting minutes shall be distributed within five (5) business days of the meeting.

PROGRAMMING: Identify and develop data to evaluate and clarify the proposed Project. Through discussions
with the Project Team, by interrogation and necessary counsel, establish, in requisite detail, the functional and
operational needs of the State/Client Agency's respective program(s), as well as operational factors,
maintenance and other support features. Allocation of spaces shall be in accordance with the State of
Michigan’s current “Capital Outlay Design Manual for State Universities, Community Colleges, State Agencies
and Professional Service Contractors” and be consistent with the Project/Program Statement and Project
Budget. Provide all additional research, studies, and program analysis necessary identify the objectives and
requirements for a fully operable Project acceptably serving its intended use.

DEVELOPMENT; Transcribe and consolidate all data, studies and the analysis of Task 202 into a program
analysis summarizing the complete program for the project, including spaces, physical features, systems,
functions, capacities, relationships, and interactions required by the proposed Project. Revise the proposed
program as required to achieve the Project objectives and incorporate review comments by the Project Team.
Obtain approval and sign-off of space allocations from the Project Director before providing the space allocations
to the State/Client Agency for approval and sign-off of the complete program.

PROJECT COST ESTIMATE: Provide an itemized cost estimate of the proposed Project program. Verify in
writing that the Project Budget is adequate to achieve the proposed Project. Revise the program analysis
documents as necessary to provide an acceptable program analysis design within the Department's authorized
Project Budget.

PROGRAM ANALYSIS REPORT: Prepare a draft program analysis report containing the program, cost
estimate, signoffs and backup data and information. Submit one (1) electronic copy in indexed PDF format of
the draft study report to the Project Team at 50 percent and 90 percent completion review intervals and solicit
review comments. Incorporate review comments as directed by the Department into the proposed final program
analysis report. Provide one reproducible original and an electronic copy suitable for legible reproduction. One
program analysis report presentation shall be considered basic services for this Task. Any additional program
analysis report presentations requested by the Department will be considered exira professional services and
the additional study costs will be paid to the Professional by the Department with a Contract Change Order.

PHASE 300 : SCHEMATIC DESIGN

Prepare progressive schematic design deliverables consistent with the Project/Program Statement, and approved program (if
applicable). Diagrammatically depict the area(s) and relationship of the Project functions. Establish the design basis for and show
principal building design elements and locations of the various structural, mechanical, heating, ventilating, and air conditioning
(HVAC), electrical and other systems as necessary to completely achieve the Project. The Professional shall obtain Professional
Consultant firms for civil/site survey, site geotechnical investigation analysis and soil testing as the Professional deems necessary to
achieve a viable and economic Project design. Revise design as necessary to obtain approval from the Department and the
State/Client Agency.

Task 301

COORDINATION; Meetwith the Project Team to establish a physical size and arrangement of the Project and its
principal systems. Include technical, human, and physical environment requirements consistent with the Project
program as well as the functional interrelationships between spaces or systems. Determine any Project
requirements as necessary to accommodate artwork.

Where the Project involves work in an existing building, site, and/or utility system, identify and locate by scaled
graphic diagram, any building and/or site utility areas that may have potential hazardous material contamination
and may require testing, abatement and/or removal by the Department, prior to the renovation and/or during
the new construction work of the Project.

-6-




Task 302

Task 303

Task 304

Task 305

Task 306

Identify and define, in writing, the impact of the proposed Project schematic design on the existing building or
facility operations. Assist the Department in determining and resolving any Project requirements for maintaining
the current operation of the existing building facility spaces or systems and site utility areas, including as a
minimum, the impact of hazardous waste removal, and the associated necessary demolition and repair of the
adjoining work.

Hazardous material testing and removal will be performed by the Department by separate Contract using other
professional firms. See Task 512 - Hazardous Materials, for text defining the Professional’s responsibility for
assisting the Department with these materials.

Progressively review, with the Project Team, the development of the schematic design documents and assist in
obtaining data and providing timely decisions. Present proposed schematic design documents for review to the
State/Client Agency and the Department at 50 percent and 90 percent completion intervals and at such other
times as the Department deems necessary to completely develop and monitor the Project.

Preside at all Project related meetings and prepare and distribute minutes of all meetings, reports of on-site
visitations, correspondence, memoranda, telephone, and other conversations or communications. Where
essential or significant information is established or evaluated, and/for critical decisions are made, whether in
meetings, conversation or email correspondence, include that information or decisions in formal project
correspondence and distribute copies to the Project Team within two (2) business days of the date of
occurrence, or include such information and decisions in the immediately subsequent project meeting minutes.
Meeting minutes shall be distributed within five (5) business days of the meeting.

CONSTRUCTION CODE AND DESIGN REVIEWS: Identify, list, and define for the Department, in writing, the
impact of all applicable construction codes, rules, regulations, environmental requirements, design reviews,
and permitting procedures current as of the start of this schematic design Phase that will apply to the design of
the proposed Project. Review with the Project Team the principal impacts on Project planning and incorporate
these into the schematic design report and the Project cost/proposed construction schedule of Task 309.

CIVIL/SITE STAGING INVESTIGATION: The Professional shall retain a civil/site survey Consultant and a site
geotechnical testing Consultant and coordinate their proposed architectural and/or engineering services and
prepare the site staging investigation survey instructions program(s) required to establish and execute a
complete schematic site design appropriate to the Project/Program Statement. Analyze site staging
investigation results and incorporate into the schematic site design. Coordinate a site-specific testing program
to identify andfor confirm the Project site underground conditions and accurately specify contractual
requirements. This includes, but is not limited to, access, traffic control, demolition, Soil Erosion and
Sedimentation Control, engineered fill, utilities, removal of obstructions/contaminations, borrow and spoit areas,
bracing, shoring, waterproofing, dewatering, dredging, and similar work. Provide the Department with copies of
all site investigation geotechnical test reports. Review conclusions and, upon request, explain their influence
on the Project schematic design. Define the impact of the Project on adjacent buildings.

STRUCTURAL: Research, survey, define, and render all existing structural systems appropriate to the
proposed Project. Show facility layout, applicable area floor loadings and basic elevations. Outline any existing
principal structural system members and render and show the proposed structural system schematic design
for renovations and additions.

MECHANICALHVAC/PLUMBING/UTILITIES: Research survey, define and render the schematic design basis
for all proposed mechanical, plumbing systems, and utility systems appropriate to the Project. This includes but
is not fimited to all plumbing, HVAC, and other mechanical systems, equipment, and their respective loads.
Define and render the schematic design capacities, sources, flows, and functions of all existing and/or proposed
utility systems, including but not fimited to steam, water, fuel, storm and sanitary sewers, and fire protection.
Field-check and verify accessibility and space for all equipment on the proposed schematic design drawings.
Confirm, in writing, to the Department, the availability of utility capacities at current or proposed connections.
Contact applicable utilities for information on connections, connection permit requirements, fees, and
schedules.

ELECTRICAL: Research, survey, define and render the schematic design basis for all proposed electrical
systems appropriate to the Project.




Task 307

Task 308

Task 309

Task 310

This may include, but is not limited to utility service systems, primary and secondary distribution systems,
building control systems, security systems, elevators, fire alarms, television, data, communications, and simitar
systems., Define sources, equipment capacities, and loads, including those for open office
workstation/partitioning systems. Field-check and verify accessibility and space for all equipment on the
proposed schematic design drawings. Confirm, in writing, to the Department, the availability of utility capacities
at current or proposed connections. Contact applicable utilities for information on connections, connection
permit requirements, required easements, transformers, fees, and schedules.

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING: Research, survey, define, and render the existing and proposed schematic
design architectural and/or engineering building area layout appropriate to the Project/Program Statement.
Show proposed applicable areafroom space, finish treatment, uses, interrelationships, and principal building
sections, elevations, and dimensions. Show principal building fire protection spaces and features. Consider
sustainability in material, equipment, systems, and general design selections, provide LEED checklist, as
applicable.

DRAFTING: Prepare and render proposed schematic design documents appropriate to the Project, on sheet
size approved by the Project Director. Include all principal building/site utility systems. Coordinate the Project
schematic design with all architectural and/or engineering design disciplines for completeness, accuracy and
consistency, and conflict avoidance. The Professional shall field-check and verify the accuracy of all existing
and proposed architectural and/or engineering drawings and any data furnished by the Department, the
State/Client Agency or any other Project related source.

PROJECT COST/PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE: Evaluate the proposed schematic design
against the estimated Project cost and design/construction schedule. Revise schematic design as required to
produce a design within the Department's approved Budget. Prepare and submit a Project Budget based on
the approved schematic design. Apply critical target dates to the Professional’s Project Study, Design and
Proposed Construction Schedule and submit to the Department for their review and approval.

SCHEMATIC DESIGN REVIEW: Prepare, reproduce, submit, and make presentations and revisions of the
schematic design planning documents. Present proposed documents for the Project Team review at the 50
percent and 90 percent completion intervals and solicit review comments. Revise proposed schematic design
documents, as necessary, to incorporate all requested design review comments. Obtain Department approval
and sign-off prior to State/Client Agency sign-off, when requested by Project Director. Where legislative review
is required, provide an additional one (1) electronic copy in PDF format of the Department approved proposed
schematic design documents to the Department for distribution to the Joint Capital Outlay Subcommittee, in the
format of the “Capital Outlay Design Manual for State Universities, Community Colleges, State Agencies, and
Professional Service Contractors”.

Provide one (1) schematic design presentation to the Project Team for this Task. Any additional schematic
design presentations requested by the Department will be considered extra professional services and the
additional schematic design costs will be paid to the Professional by the Department with a Contract Change
Order.

If Contract Services conclude with this Phase, provide bond prints and an indexed PDF of architectural and/or
engineering drawings of the final approved schematic design, suitable for legible reproduction.

PHASE 400 - PRELIMINARY DESIGN

Prepare progressive preliminary design documents to develop the Project based on the Project/Program Statement, and the
approved schematic design and program, if applicable. Refine the schematic design documents as necessary to produce an
acceptable preliminary design. The preliminary design and outline draft specification shall be complete and detailed enough to define
the size, function, arrangements, spaces, location and operations of equipment, and materials comprising the principal design details
of structures and systems. The proposed preliminary design documents and outline draft specifications shall clearly depict the
Professional’s proposed design intent of the Project's systems, materials, equipment, utilities, site improvements, and other
elements through single-line diagrams, system layout drawings and developed plans and design details. The preliminary design
thus achieved must constitute the complete basis for further detail into final design drawings.

8-




Prepare in bar chart format, the proposed Project construction schedule. Prepare a complete estimated Project cost statement
based on prevailing or predictable factors for the proposed construction bidding period. The Department'’s written acceptance of
the estimated project cost statement will establish the authorized Budget for the Project. The Professional shall apply the means
and methods necessary to achieve the proposed preliminary design within the authorized Budget for the Project.

Task 401 COORDINATION: Meet with the Project Team to review the Project/Program Statement, approved schematic
design documents (if applicable), and refine the Project. Assist the Project Team to progressively review the
proposed prefiminary design, develop input, and provide timely decisions.

Where the Project involves work in an existing building, site, and/or utility system, identify and locate by scaled
graphic diagram, any building and/or site ufility areas that may have potential hazardous material contamination
and may require testing, abatement, and/or removal by the Department, prior to the renovation and/or during
the new construction work of the Project. Identify and define, in writing, the impact of the proposed Project
schematic design on the existing building or facility operations. Assist the Department in determining and
resolving any Project requirements for maintaining the current operation of the existing building facility spaces
or systems and site utility areas, including as a minimum, the impact of hazardous waste removal, and the
associated necessary demolition and repair of the adjoining work.

Hazardous material testing and removal will be performed by the Department by separate Contract using other
professional firms. See Task 512 - Hazardous Materials, for text defining the Professional's responsibility for
assisting the Department with these materials.

Progressively review, with the Project Team, the development of the preliminary design documents and assist
in obtaining data and providing timely decisions. Incorporate design refinements consistent with the proposed
Project scope. Establish equipment and/or materials to be furnished by the State. Present proposed prefiminary
design documents for review to the State/Client Agency and the Department at 50 percent and 90 percent
completion intervals and at such other times as the Department deems necessary to completely develop and
monitor the Project. '

Preside at all Project related meetings and prepare and distribute minutes of all meetings, reports of on-site
visitations, correspondence, memoranda, telephone, and other conversations or communications. Where
essential or significant information is established or evaluated, and/or critical decisions are made, whether in
meetings, conversation or email correspondence, include that information or decisions in formal project
correspondence and distribute copies to the Project Team within two (2) business days of the date of
occurrence, or include such information and decisions in the immediately subsequent project meeting minutes.
Meeting minutes shall be distributed within five (5) business days of the meeting.

Task 402 SPECIFICATIONS: Prepare proposed preliminary design outfine draft specifications for Divisions 00 through 49,
in the current version of the Master Format Cutline by the Construction Specifications Institute (C.S.l.), as
appropriate for the defined Project. Outline specifications will address sustainable design in materials selection.

Task 403 CIVIL/SITE STAGING DESIGN/INVESTIGATION: If the Professional did not obtain a site specific geotechnical
testing program for this Project and advise the Department during the Schematic Design Phase, they shall
retain a civil/site survey Consultant and a geotechnical testing Consultant and coordinate their proposed
architectural and/or engineering services to prepare and provide a preliminary geotechnical site investigation
and site staging design as directly related to the Project.

Coordinate a site-specific testing program to identify and/or confirm the Project site underground conditions
and to accurately specify the proposed construction contractual requirements. This includes, but is not limited
to access, traffic control, demalition, Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control, engineered fill, utilities, removal
of obstructions/contaminations, borrow and spoil areas, bracing, shoring, waterproofing, dewatering, dredging,
and similar work. Determine and prepare a list of required civil/site drawings as related to the Project. Hllustrate
and coordinate any off-site work necessary for a completely functioning Project. Revise as required.

Task 404 STRUCTURAL: Prepare structural calculations appropriate to the proposed Project and size major
components. Prepare preliminary structural plans, sections, elevations, and details drawings, as applicable for
the defined scope of work. Determine and prepare a list of required preliminary structural drawings as related
to the proposed Project. Revise asrequired.

9.




Task 405

Task 406

Task 407

Task 408

Task 409

Task 410

MECHANICAL/HVAC/PLUMBING/UTILITIES: Identify existing mechanicai/heating, ventilating, and air
conditioning equipment, plumbing systems, and utility systems.

Calculate heat loss, heat gain, and other demands for all spaces. Determine ventilation requirements. Calculate
total loads, identify, and size new equipment. Identify and/or calculate total utility loads. Include the needs of
any existing building or system that is a part of, or interfaces with the Project, as well as those of the Project.
Provide basic engineering design appropriate for all principal building components, utility systems and building
systems, and all pre-engineered equipment suitable and appropriate for the proposed Project. Field-check and
verify clearances for all proposed equipment and systems proposed. Prepare preliminary HYAC, plumbing, and
utility drawings. Determine and prepare a list of required preliminary design drawings as related to the proposed
Project. Review current, mechanical, plumbing and utility system codes and incorporate applicable
requirements. Revise as required. Secure in writing, the approval of capacities and connections for the Project
from the appropriate utilities/suppliers.

ELECTRICAL: Identify existing equipment and systems. Prepare load calculations, including electric loads for
fixed, and movable, equipment, as appropriate to the defined Project. Determine electric service requirements
and size major transformer and service equipment. Provide single line diagrams of primary service and
distribution systems. Develop and outline basic equipment and distribution systems for lighting, power, building
control, elevators, fire, security, television, data, communications, and other specialized systems of the Project.
Coordinate design to incorporate design requirements for any open office workstation/partitioning systems.

Field-check and verify clearances for all proposed equipment and design systems proposed. Prepare
preliminary electrical drawings. Determine and prepare a list of required preliminary design electrical drawings
as related to the proposed Project. Review current electrical codes and incorporate all applicable requirements.
Revise as required. Secure in writing, the approval of capacities and connections for the Project from the
appropriate utility/suppliers.

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING: Prepare preliminary architectural and/or engineering drawings,
appropriate to the proposed Project, to detail and define the Project. Coordinate design to incorporate design
requirements for any open office workstation/partitioning systems. Determine and prepare a list of required
preliminary design architectural and/or engineering drawings. Drawings will include plans, elevations, sections,
and critical construction details in order that an accurate and detailed construction estimate can be provided.
Depict sustainable design criteria and energy efficient design features of the Project, provide LEED Checklist, and
provide summary calculations to demonstrate applicable compliance with the State of Michigan’s current
Energy Code requirements. Revise as required.

DRAFTING: Prepare and render the preliminary design architectural and/or engineering documents on sheet
size approved by Project Director. Coordinate the preliminary design with related architectural and/or
engineering design disciplines for completeness, accuracy and consistency and conflict avoidance. Prepare
drawings using applicable State of Michigan standards as defined in the Department's “Capital Outlay Design
Manual for State Universities, Community Colleges, State Agencies, and Professional Service Contractors”
and DTMB DCD "Design and Construction Standards for Office Construction and Tenant Fit out” for all Project
design disciplines. The Professional shall field-check and verify the accuracy of all existing and proposed
drawings and any data furnished by the Department, the State/Client Agency, or any other Project related
source,

COST ESTIMATE AND CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE: Prepare an itemized Project construction cost estimate
based on prevailing or reasonably predictable factors for the proposed bidding peried. Recommend construction
strategies, methods, and phasing. Identify long-lead items and any State of Michigan-furnished materials,
equipment, systems, and furnishings, with procurement deadlines consistent with the proposed schedule and
phasing. Prepare in bar chart format a detailed schedule of the design and proposed bidding and construction
schedule, incorporating the information listed above.

PRELIMINARY DESIGN REVIEW: Prepare, reproduce, submit, and make presentations and revisions of the
schematic design planning documents. Present proposed documents for the Project Team review at the 50
percent and 90 percent completion intervals and solicit review comments. Revise proposed preliminary design
documents, as necessary, to incorporate all requested design review comments.

-10-




With the 50 percent review, provide design criteria and calculations of principal architectural, mechanical,
plumbing, and electrical engineering systems demonstrating basic compliance with the State of Michigan's
current Energy Code requirements.

For each review, present proposed preliminary design documents first to the State/Client Agency for
programmatic design conformance review, then present to the Department for review, determination of required
revisions, and acceptance. Revise proposed preliminary design documents, as necessary, to incorporate all
requested design review comments required for the Department's written acceptance of the proposed Project
preliminary design.

Where legislative review is required, provide an additional one (1) electronic copy in PDF format of the approved
proposed preliminary design documents to the Department for distribution to the Joint Capital Outlay
Subcommittee, in the format of the “Capital Qutlay Design Manual for State Universities, Community Colleges,
State Agencies, and Professional Service Contractors”. Provide one (1) schematic design presentation to the
Project Team for this Task. Any additional schematic design presentations requested by the Department will
be considered exira professional services and the additional preliminary design costs will be paid to the
Professional by the Department with a Contract Change Order. If Contract Services conclude with this Phase,
provide bond prints, electronic CAD, and indexed PDF of architectural and/or engineering drawings of the final
approved schematic design and outline specifications suitable for legible reproduction.

PHASE 500 - FINAL DESIGN

Prepare for progressive, periodic review, Final Design Documents which shall revise, refine, amplify, and depict, in detail, the Project
as described and required by the Project/Program Statement and any approved prefiminary design. Final Design Documents shall
be prepared in Phases/Bid packages appropriate to the Project, schedule, and funding.

The proposed Final Design Documents shall document a complete and constructible Project. Final Design Documents shall
incorporate and comply with all current, applicable regulations, ordinances, construction codes and statutes, and must have
accomplished all reviews by appropriate federal, State or any local authorities having jurisdiction before presentation to the
Department for acceptance and advertisement for bidding. Where design approvals are required, the Professional shall acquire
and provide them. The Final Design Documents shall be without ambiguity and must be so complete that no significant design
decision is left to the discretion of any Bidder, manufacturer, or supplier. The Final Design Documents will not define, quantify, or
in any other way represent any work as being assignable to, or to be performed by, any Consultant or sub-consultant, except for
fire suppression systems or other specialized system(s) provided that it is specifically authorized, in writing, by the department.

Bidding Documents shall consist of, but are not limited to, the Final Design Documents, including final architectural andfor
engineering drawings and specifications, special, general, and supplemental conditions of the Construction Contract, and
modifications, if any, to MICHSPEC or DCSpec documents provided by the Department. Such standard documents may consist of,
but are not limited to, the project advertisement, the Instructions to Bidders, the proposal forms, general, supplemental, and any
special conditions of the Construction Contract, and the standard form of agreement between the Department and the Construction
Contractor. The Professional may not substitute any other special, general, and supplemental conditions for the Construction
Contract or other standard documents provided by the Department. The Professional may not revise, other than the fillable portions
of the general conditions, or use any additional general condition requirements unless the revisions or requirements are accepted
and approved by the Department in writing.

In addition to the requirements herein, the professional services for this Project shall include, but are not limited to, those set forth in
the current version of MICHSPEC or the current DCSPEC as adopted and modified by the State of Michigan and incorporated into
the Construction Contract, plus such other Department standard documents and general conditions as may be part of the
Construction Contract.

The Contract Documents shall consist of the Bidding Documents and all Addenda and attachments necessary to provide a
complete Construction Contract for the Project.

Task 501 COORDINATION: Review approved preliminary design drawings with the Project Team and solicit revisions.
Incorporate any revisions and design refinements.

-11-




Task 502

Task 503

Task 504

Present proposed final design documents to the State/Client Agency and the Department for their review at the
50 percent and 90 percent completion intervals and at such other times as the Department deems necessary to
completely develop and monitor the Project.

Preside at all Project related meetings and prepare and distribute minutes of all meetings, reports of on-site
visitations, correspondence, memoranda, telephone, and other conversations or communications.

Where essential or significant information is established or evaluated, andfor critical decisions are made,
whether in meetings, conversation, or email correspondence, include that information or decisions in formal
project correspondence and distribute copies to the Project Team within two (2) business days of the date of
occurrence, or include such information and decisions in the immediately subsequent project meeting minutes.
Meeting minutes shall be distributed within five (5) business days of the meeting.

SPECIFICATIONS: Prepare final design specifications in the format defined below and with Phasing as
appropriate for the Project. include a schedule of all required submittals, a construction material testing
schedule, and all other necessary schedules. Specifications shall be coordinated with the final design
architectural and/or engineering drawings and shall be prepared in the current version of the Master Format
Outline by the Construction Specifications Institute (C.S.1.). The final design architectural and/or engineering
specifications shall clearly define the Project design and construction requirements indicating the type and
quality of materials, products, and workmanship.

Sustainable Design shall be used wherever possible by the Professional in their Project design. The United
States Green Building Council's (USGBC) LEED Green Building Rating System will be used as a convenient
and industry accepted standard of reporting and measurement of the materials and design strategies used in
the Project, but the USGBC certificate will not be required. Sustainable Design is defined in this Contract as
the Professional’s use of Project design resources with no negative impact to the natural ecosystems, an
emphasis on overall energy efficiency, recycling, reduction of waste, and achieving a net enhancement of the
Project,

Performance specifications shall be used when feasible. If not, the Professional shall name at least three (3)
acceptable materials, products or systems and the specifications shall contain an "or equal” clause. Whenever
possible, recycled materials and/or Michigan-manufactured products shall be named and given first
preference. Proprietary specifications or allowances may be permitted with the Department's acceptance and
written approval, but only for special, unavoidable conditions. Provide Project specifications to the Department
for procurement of items to be pre-purchased through existing State contracts or separate bids.

CIVIL/SITE STAGING DESIGN: If the Professional did not obtain a site-specific geotechnical testing program
for this Project and advise the Department during the Schematic Design Phase, they shall retain a civil/site
survey Consultant and a geotechnical testing Consultant and coordinate their proposed architectural and/for
engineering services to prepare and provide a preliminary geotechnical site investigation and site staging
design as directly related to the Project. Coordinate a site-specific testing program to identify and/or confirm
the Project site underground conditions and to accurately specify the proposed construction contractual
requirements. This includes, but is not limited to access, traffic control, demolition, Scil Erosion and
Sedimentation Control, engineered fill, utilities, removal of obstructions/contaminations, borrow and spoil areas,
bracing, shoring, waterproofing, dewatering, dredging, and similar work. Determine and prepare a list of required
civil/site drawings as related to the Project. lllustrate and coordinate any ofi-site work necessary for a completely
functioning Project. Revise as required.

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control shall be implemented in accordance with the current edition of the
Department's compliance manual and 1994 PA 451, as amended - The Natural Resources Environmental
Protection Act, Part 91 — Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control. Submit final civil/site design drawings
depicting Socil Erosion and Sedimentation Control measures to the Department's Scil Erosion and
Sedimentation Control Program for review in accordance with 1994 PA 451, asamended. For DTMB managed
projects, coordinate review submission with Project Director as plan review is completed within the Design and
Construction Division.

STRUCTURAL. Prepare and render complete structural final design documents.

-12-




Task 505

Task 506

Task 507

Task 508

Task 509

Task 510

MECHANICALHVAC/PLUMBING/UTILITIES: Prepare and render complete mechanical, plumbing, and utility
system final design documents, ,

ELECTRICAL: Prepare and render complete electrical system final design documents.

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING: Prepare and render complete architectural and/or engineering final design
documents. Assist the Department in the determination of and specification of furnishings, colors, and finish
selections. Provide material finish and color board for final acceptance as required for the defined Project.

DRAFTING: Prepare complete final design architectural and/or engineering drawings for Bidding Documents
on sheet size approved by Project Director using applicable State of Michigan standards as defined in the
“Capital Outlay Design Manual for State Universities, Community Colleges, State Agencies and Professional
Services Contractors.” The Professional shall field-check and verify the accuracy of all existing and proposed
drawings and any data furnished by the Department, the State/Client Agency or any other Project related
source.

The Project Bidding Documents derived from the Final Design drawings shall be made available and converted
if necessary, to the AutoCAD computer drafting system. Bidding Documents shall be provided electronically in
pdf format to the Department for advertisement by the Department.

Provide one electronic copy of signed and sealed documents in addition to paper review and approval sets of
the Contract Documents. The signed and sealed print sets are the controlling Contract Documents for this
Project. The software name and release number used to produce the Design Contract drawings will be clearly
identified on the electronic media.

CHECKING CONTRACT DOCUMENTS; Check and coordinate all proposed Bidding and Contract Documents
for completeness and accuracy. Prepare Bidding and Contract Documents that will protect the Department
from unexpected construction cost increases, schedule delays or claims for reason of defective or incomplete
rendering of the Professional’s design, or for any delinquency by the Professional for performance of the
professional design services under this Contract, Check the adequacy of all spaces and clearances.

Cross-check and coordinate the requirements of all proposed final design drawings between the architectural
and/or engineering design disciplines for completeness, accuracy, and consistency, and conflict avoidance.
Similarly, cross-check and coordinate all proposed final design drawings against the Project specifications.
Mark each drawing with the name of the checker and with the written signature approval of the appropriate
Professional “Key Principal Personnel/Employee.”

CONSTRUCTION CODES AND PERMITS; The Professional's Contract Documents shall comply with the State
of Michigan Construction Code, 1972 PA 230, as amended, the State of Michigan Energy Code, the Americans
with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accessibility Guide requirements, the State of Michigan Barrier-Free Access Code
requirements, and all Project related construction code requirements in effect at the time of award of this
Contract. Assist the Department in obtaining approval of the Project and its design by appropriate governmental
regulating and/cr code enforcement authorities.

Project Bidding Documents may not be advertised until plan review approval is obtained.

Except as otherwise provided for in this Contract, code compliance and plan review approval(s) shall be
performed by the, the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs, Bureau of Construction Codes, Plan
Review Division, and the Bureau of Fire Services. Code compliance and plan review approval fees shall be paid
by the Professional as a reimbursable expense, unless otherwise provided for. Submit all modeling, testing,
design data, and appropriate drawings and applications for all permits, tests, and approvals, which the
Department is required to secure as a prerequisite authorization for the Project's approval. Submit Soil Erosion
and Sedimentation Control plans/drawings to the Department's Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control
Program as the enforcing authority for this Project, no later than at the 90 percent final design stage.

Provide energy efficient design features and summary calculations to demonstrate Project compliance with the
State of Michigan Sustainability requirements.

-13-




Task 511

Task 512

Task 513

Task 514

Task 515

Submit documents for review in a timely manner allowing appropriate time for review/permitting processes by
respective authorities, such that the Project schedule is not unnecessarily delayed. Assist the State/Client
Agency to secure any appropriate construction code waivers. '

Incorporate all required modifications into the Bidding Documents. Follow through to ensure issuance of the
construction codes and permits approvals. Secure all required design approvals before submitting the final
design documents to the Project Team for the final design document review of Task 515.

Any approval secured in initial plan review and permitting does not relieve the Professional from complying with
code official's construction field inspections enforcement requirements.

CONSTRUCTION TESTING PROGRAM: Coordinate Project on-site survey and appropriate research to
identify site specific abnormal construction conditions. Coordinate site specific geotechnical testing program of
areas, consistent with the design and siting requirements. Identify and confirm the site underground conditions
sufficiently to accurately specify the construction contractual requirements, Estabiish the required construction
quality control and materials testing program. Define and specify the types of Project construction tests required,
the approximate quantities to be tested and the projected cost thereof. Prepare quality control and material
testing services program Bidding Documents for the construction quality control and material testing services.
Testing services shall be estimated and identified as an authorized reimbursable expense item in this Contract.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: Where the Project involves work in an existing building and/or utility system, assist
the Department to determine the scope of potential hazardous materials contamination that may require testing,
abatement and/or removal by the Department, prior to the renovation and/or during the new construction work of
the Project. Hazardous materials testing and removal for this Project will be performed by the Department by
separate Contract unless specifically noted in the project scope. Coordinate the professional design services
of this Contract with any hazardous material removal services required to implement this Project. Include for
the Department's use, architectural and/or engineering drawings and specifications for all restoration work
necessary following completion of the removal/abatement Project. Revise the final design drawings,
specifications, and schedule, if necessary, toreflect the impact of the hazardous material removal/abatement on
the existing State/Client Agency facility operations.

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION BUDGET: The Professional shall be responsible for all costs incurred by it,
necessitated by for rebidding a Project if it is over Budget due to their design. Submit in writing the itemized
estimate of the construction costs with each final design review. Include all construction Bid packaging and
Phasing. Determine the amount and adequacy of any construction contingency. Upon submittal of the 90
percent complete final design documents, confirm an accurate itemized construction cost estimate in writing fo
the Department. Confirm that the total Project construction cost is estimated to be within the Project Budget.

Notify the Department in writing if it becomes evident during the final design phase that the Project cannot be
constructed within the Professional's estimated construction Budget, Unless the Department determines the
problem to be outside the control or responsibility of the Professional, the Professional shall revise their final
design drawings and specifications to produce a complete design for the Project within the Professional's
original estimated construction Budget cost and will otherwise be responsible for any costs incurred by the
Department in rebidding the Project.

Assist the Department to rebid the Project in accordance with the Task 516 construction bidding/contracting
procedures.

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE: Determine the appropriate proposed construction schedule to be part of the
Construction Contract, Consider all principal influencing factors, including, but not limited to, current and
projected material delivery times, local labor contract periods, and other historical principal causes of delays.

FINAL DESIGN BIDDING DOCUMENTS REVIEW: Provide complete final design documents review. When the
final design is 50 percent complete, submit the final design documents to the Project team for their review. If the
final design appears to exceed the Project Budget, review with the Department all cost reduction design options.
Incorporate at 90 percent completion, all required design modifications applicable to the Project, and resubmit
to the Project Director. Confirm in writing that the requirements of Tasks 509 and 510 have been met.

-14-




Task 516

Task 517

Submit 100 percent complete sets of Bidding Documents to the Project Team for their final review. Submit final
design documents to the State/Client Agency and the Department for their final design review and revise as
necessary to incorporate all review comments required for Department written acceptance of the Bidding
Documents. Provide adequate time (minimum of 14 calendar days) for the reviews and implementation of any
comments or modifications.

CONSTRUCTION BIDDING AND CONTRACTING: Assist the Department in the construction bidding and
contracting process. The State of Michigan will advertise for bids and issue construction documents on-line and
award and hold the Construction Contract. Prepare (maximum of 6mb electronic PDF files) and distribute
Bidding Documents to the Project Director as required to accommodate predetermined construction Bid
packages and/or Phases. Conduct pre-bid meetings and issue pre-bid meeting minutes and bidder's lists. issue
Addenda to the Project Director as required for posting. Include in each Addendum complete specifications for
the Project if such specifications are not part of the Bidding Documents.

The Professional will be compensated by the Department with a Contract Change Order for providing the
professional services necessary to rebid the Project for reason of defaulted or disqualified construction Bidder(s)
or unacceptable price range as required by the design and construction Budget text of Task 513,

The Professional’s construction bidding and contracting procedure services for Task 516 are not complete until:
(1) The responsive, responsible, best value construction Bidder's Bid has been selected and accepted by the
Department; and (2) The responsive, responsible, best value construction Bidder's Construction Contract has
been executed. The PSC is to also incorporate any State required preferences with their review and
recommendation.

Construction Bid Evaluation and Recommendation of Construction Contract Awards: Review and evaluate the
submitted construction Bids. Provide the Department with a written recommendation for the apparent lowest
responsive, responsible, best value construction Bidder for the Project Construction Contract award(s) within
five (5) business days of the date of the Department's construction Bid opening. Exempt from recommendation
any firm that in the Professional's opinion is unqualified for the Project (documentation required) or that the
Professional has a business association with on this Project, and any firm, that the Professional has used in
preparation of the Contract Documents or for any estimating work related to the Project.

The Professional shall conduct pre-contract meetings with responsive, responsible best value construction
Bidder(s) to review the following items: (1) Understanding of the design intent of the Contract Documents; and
(2) To advise and assist the Construction Contractor(s) in understanding the requirements of the Department's
standard form of Construction Contract Documents, Project scope of work, and its Construction Contract award
procedures.

Unless otherwise designated in the Department's Notice of Intent to Award letter to the recommended
Construction Contractor within fiteen (15) calendar days from the date that the Notice of Intent to Award letter
was mailed to the Construction Contractor, the Construction Contractor recommended for the award of the
Construction Contract shall (a) Fill out and execute the Department's, current version of MICHSPEC standard
form documents Section 00500, Contract Agreement and the Section 00800, Supplementary Conditions,
electronically; (b) Execute Section 00610, Performance Bond, and the Section 00620, Payment Bond (and
attach to each bond a separate, certified copy of Power of Attorney); and (c) Return to the Department, the
Construction Contractor's executed Section 00500, Contract Agreement, Section 00610, Performance Bond,
and Section 00620, Payment Bond forms, evidence of Certificates of Insurance and any other legal documents
required for submittal by the Department's, Notice of Intent to Award letter.

FINAL DESIGN CORRECTION PROCEDURES: Correct at no additional cost to the Department any design
errors or omissions and/for cother Project related deficiencies identified during the 600 and 700 Construction
Phase. All reproduction costs for design interpretations, clarifications, and Bulletins related to the Professional's
final design errors or omissions and simitar or avoidable costs shalf be accounted as part of the Professional’s
calculated hourly billing rates.

-15-




Provide design clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents requirements necessary to: (1)
Adequately describe the Project work; (2) Adapt architectural and/or engineering final design documents during
construction to accommodate field conditions identified during construction; (3) Refine design details that are
not feasible and identified during construction; and (4) Comply with current construction/building codes, and all
other Project related design and construction matters as may be necessary to produce a complete Project.

Design Interpretations and Clarifications: For elements of construction having no change in cost to the State
the Professional will; {1) Provide instructions, and/or design interpretations and clarifications for design details
within five (5) business days of the Construction Contractor’s request record same, in writing; and (2) Revise
the Professional's original final design architectural andfor engineering drawings and specifications as
appropriate to the Project. Marking and initialing of drawings is not an acceptable form of written instruction.

Bulletin Authorization; Request authorization from the Project Director to issue each individual Bulletin, The
Professional’s Bulletin Authorization request will: (1) Identify the problem requiring the change; (2) Describe
clearly if such problem arises from the architectural and/or engineering final design errors or omissions; (3)
[dentify the anticipated design cost and the estimated construction cost to implement the change(s); and (4)
Describe clearly in the Professional's opinion which part, if any, of the design and/for construction costs are the
obligation of the State, the Professional or the Construction Contractor. Include a Contract Modification request
for any work outside the Project. |dentify any anticipated Project design or construction schedule implications.

Bulletins: All reproduction costs for design interpretations and clarifications and Bulletins related to the
Professional's architectural and/or engineering final design errors or omissions and similar or avoidable costs
shall be accounted as part of the Professional’s calculated hourly billing rates.

Describe, by Bulletin, design revisions necessary to correct the architectural andfor engineering final design
errors or omissions, to address previously unidentified on-site field design conditions, to reduce costs and for
all other matters approved by the Department involving costs or credit to the State. Postponement of action on
items to accumulate multi-item Bulletins is not permitted.

Prepare and issue Bulletins within ten (10) business days of receipt of the Department’s authorization. Bulletins
shall be in such form and detail as the Department may prescribe. The Professional shall incorporate all
accepted Bulletin revisions or design interpretations into the appropriate originals of all applicable Contract
Documents. Such revised drawings and specifications shall be issued as part of Bulletins.-Each Bulletin shall
prescribe a time schedule for the Construction Contractor's response. Provide one electronic copy of each
Bulletin to the Department and distribute as the Department may direct,

Evaluate the Construction Contractor's price quotation(s) and review and attempt to negotiate with the
Construction Contractor to provide the Department with costs that are consistent with the value of the Project
Bulletin(s). Recommend appropriate action to the Department regarding the Construction Contractor's
quotations within five (5) business days of receiptthereof.

PHASE 600 - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION - OFFICE SERVICES

During the construction Phase of this Project, the “DTMB-0460, Project Procedures” documents package shall be used by the
Professional in the administration of this Contract.

The Professional shall use the "“DTMB-0452, The Professional's Inspection Record” for all on-site Inspection visits to the Project
site. The form shall be completed and signed by the Professional and compiled monthly with the original form document sent to
the Department's, Project Director and a copy sent to the Construction Contractor. The on-site Inspection record standard
document form shall be completed and accompany the Professional’s monthly payment request.

The Professional shall provide all required construction administration services and timely professional and administrative
initiatives as the circumstances of the Project construction may require in order to allow the design intent requirements of the
Professional's Contract Documents to be successfully implemented into a completed Project through the Construction Contractor's
completion of the Construction Contract work.

-16-




In observed cases which may involve danger to human life, immediate safety hazards to personnel, existing orimpending damage
to the Project, to State/Client Agency property or'to other property; as may be impacted by the Project, the Professional shall inform
the Construction Contractor(s) of the situation and their observations.

The Professional shall immediately record and report such situations to the Department and certify any accrued Project costs in
writing. The Professional shall always have access to the Construction Contractor(s) work.

Establish and maintain effective construction administration office procedures, systems, and records to progressively, and
exclusively, manage and control the Professionaf's obligations, commitments, achievements, and expenditures under this
construction Phase administration.

Monitor the quality and progress of the Project construction Phase work. Maintain all necessary Project records, provide on-site
visitation reports, and provide all administrative office action as may be necessary to inform the Construction Contractor(s), in
writing, with respect to their compliance with the design intent of the Contract Documents.

Advise and assist the Department in taking all prac{ical steps necessary to address and complete the Project in the event of
performance delays or defaults by the Construction Contractor(s). '

Task 601 COORDINATION: Coordinate the Professional’s staff, Consultants, and all other Project related resources.
Preside at all Project related meetings and prepare and distribute minutes of all meetings, reports of on-site
visitations, correspondence, memoranda, telephone, and other conversations or communications. Where
essential or significant information is established or evaluated, and/or critical decisions are made, whether in
meetings, conversation or email correspondence, include that information or decisions in formal project
correspondence and distribute copies to the Project Team within two (2) business days of the date of
occurrence, or include such information and decisions in the immediately subsequent project meeting minutes.
Meeting minutes shall be distributed within five (5) business days of the meeting. Meeting minutes and agendas
are to follow the order and outline of the Departments “Sample Progress Meeting Format” and include a
summary of executed CCO's, pending CCO's, Shop and RF] Submittal Logs and statuses.

Task 602 SHOP DRAWINGS, SUBMITTALS, and APPROVALS: Monitor, evaluate, and provide administrative action as
necessary to achieve timely processing of shop drawings and such other submittals and approvals that are the
responsibility of the Professional. Maintain a record of all required, received, rejected, and approved submittals
of shop drawings, color/material samples, finishes, and other items requiring the Professional’s approval. Notify
the Construction Contractor(s), in writing, (copy to the Department) of delinquent submittals, the consequences
of such delays, and prescribe a time schedule for their submittal/resubmittal, which will not jeopardize the
Construction Contract completion date.

No design revisions will be made as part of the Professional’s review and approval of shop drawings, or other
submittals. In addition to all other functions, the Professional’s approval of shop drawings shall verify the
submittals furnished by the Construction Contractor(s) conforms to the design intent of the Professional's
Contract Documents/architectural andfor engineering drawings and specifications requirements. Provide
written approval or rejection of shop drawings within ten (10) business days of receipt in the Professional's
office. Provide and distribute one electronic copy in PDF format of approved submittals as directed by the
Department.

Task 603 PAYMENT PROCEDURES: Monitor, evaluate, and provide timely administrative action, as necessary, to certify
or reject, as appropriate, and process the Construction Contractor's schedule of costs and monthly submitted
paymentrequests. Review of Payment Requests are to be completed concurrently by the Professional and the
Department's Field Representative in which the Professional is to then provide comments to the Contractor.

Payment by the State of Michigan to the Construction Contractor shall be based on the Construction
Contractor's approved completion of Contract work performed prior to the date of each monthly submitted
payment request. Payment to the Construction Contractor for each monthly submitted payment request invoice
shall be made to the Construction Contractor within thirty (30) consecutive calendar days following the
Department's receipt and approval of an approved payment request invoice from the Professional. Certification
or rejection of all submitted payment requests will be made by the Professional, in writing, within ten (10)
business days of receipt in the Professional's office.

-17-




Task 604

The Professional shall certify to the Department, in writing, the dollar amount the Professional determines to
be due to the Construction Contractor for their monthly submitted payment request or the Professional shall
return the payment request to the Construction Contractor indicating the specific reasons in writing for rejecting
the Construction Contractor's monthly submitted payment request certification.

Issue an appropriate certificate for payment only pursuant to a correctly prepared and accurate payment
request and only for acceptable Project work. Payment certification shall constitute a written representation by
the Professional, to the Department, that based on their Construction Administration on-site field Inspections,
and the Professional's evaluations of field reports, test resuits, and other appropriate and available factors, the
quantity and quality of Project work for which the payment request is certified has been accomplished by the
Construction Contractor in accordance with the design intent of the Contract Documents and that the payment
request is consistent with the quantity and quality of acceptable Project work in place, and that the acceptable
materials are properly stored on-site and/or off-site.

No payment request certificate shall be submitted that requests payment for disputed Project work or any
Project work showing deficient test results. No payment request certificate may be submitted after the
Construction Contract completion date which does not provide for withholding of assessable and/or projected
liquidated damages.

Pursuant to the Department's notification, the Professional’s certification shall reduce from the amount earned,
two (2) times the amount of any current prevailing wage rate payment deficiency, as certified by the Department
of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs, Wage and Hour Division against the Construction Contractor or any
Subcontractor or supplier thereof. Payment request rejections shall be accompanied with a written explanation
and a copy shall be submitted to the Project Director and Department Field Representative.

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE PROGRESS: Monitor, evaluate, and provide timely administrative action, as
necessary, to determine whether the Construction Contractor's construction work schedule and progress appear
to be adequate to achieve the Project on time and on schedule. Notify the Department, in writing, within three
(3) business days of receipt of the Construction Contractor's proposed Project construction schedule, or
amendments thereto, if in the Professional’s opinion such construction schedule will produce the Project within
the allotted Construction Contract completion time. Notify the Construction Contractor and the Department, in
writing, if in the Professional’s opinion such schedule should be accepted or rejected. Revise the construction
schedule of Task 514 to show that the proposed on-site visitations of Tasks 703-706 are consistent with the
actual events of the Project construction schedule. Give prompt, written notification to the Construction
Contractor(s) and to the Department of inadequate construction schedule progress.

Unless the Department determines that the needs of the Project require other action the Professional shall
proceed as follows: (1) investigate at the time of occurrence, any areas of inadequate progress whose
consequence may be a delay in, or increased cost for, a work item; (2) Notify the Construction Contractor(s)
and the Department of the Professional’'s opinion of the problem and responsibility for the delay and costs.
Advise whether the delay in any work may result in delays in the Construction Contract completion date; and
(3) Advise the Construction Contractor(s) and the Department, in writing, of recommended action(s) by
respective parties necessary to facilitate actions by the Construction Contractor to complete the Project
construction on schedule.

Bulletin Costs: During the 600 and 700 Construction Phase, review and evaluate the Construction Contractor's
quotations for Bulletin work. Negotiate as appropriate to assure the Department's costs commensurate with the
actual value of the Project work. Provide the Department with written recommendation(s) within five (5)
business days of receipt of the quotation.

Evaluate any documentable impact on the Project construction schedule claimed by the Construction
Contractor(s) arising from Bulletin work. Provide appropriate and timely action under terms allowable under the
Construction Contract, to implement any Bulletin work which the Professional and the Department consider
critical to the Project construction schedule, but whose cost is disputed.

Within ten (10) business days of its receipt, evaluate and provide the Department with appropriate written
recommendations, along with an analysis of any request by the Construction Contractor(s) for a time extension
of their Construction Contract completion date.

-18-




Task 605

Task 606

No recommendation for a Construction Contract time extension may be submitted to the Department which is
not substantiated by the Professional’s technical review and evaluation of the Project construction schedule
showing critical path work, noncritical path work, and float time for the complete Project and any work at issue
and having such detail as to clearly document the Construction Contractor's claim. Any recommendation for a
time extension of the Construction Contractor's Contract completion date must include a complete analysis of
all direct and indirect costs of the Construction Contractor, the Professional, and the Department regarding the
time extension. Where the Project is not substantially complete on the Construction Contract completion date,
notify the Construction Contractor and the Department, in writing, of the expiration of the Construction Contract
completion date and of the assessment and/or withholding of liquidated damages.

CONSTRUCTION TESTING PROGRAM: Monitor, evaluate, and provide timely administrative action as may
be required in response to the results of the construction quality control and material testing program. In
circumstances where the testing is not provided by the Department or the Professional, evaluate, and approve,
or disapprove the Construction Contractor(s) work plan for providing all construction test reports.

Provide the Construction Contractor(s) and the Department with written evaluation of all construction test
reports, copies of construction test reports, marked with the Professional’s approval or disapproval within five (5)
business days of receipt of the report.

Within five (5) business days of the receipt of any construction test reports not meeting the Construction
Contract requirements direct the Construction Contractor(s), in writing, to take appropriate, corrective, or
replacement measures within a prescribed time. Follow up, as appropriate, to require the Construction
Contractor(s) to achieve the design intent of the Professional’'s Contract Documents and avoid delays to any
element of work which may, in the Professional's opinion, result in a delay in the Construction Contract
completion date. Notify the Construction Contractor, in writing, of any delinquent corrections/replacement and
take administrative action in accordance with the Construction Contractor performance text of Task 606.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE: Throughout the execution of the Project Construction
Contract, monitor and evaluate the Construction Contractor(s) performance and quality assurance procedures
and provide timely, administrative action to cause the Construction Contractor(s) to correct their construction
deficiencies. With the Department's concurrence, the Professional may direct, in writing, the exposure and
testing of any Project construction work, already in place or covered, which the Professional, andfor the
Department, believes may not meet the design intent of the Professional’s Contract Documents.

Notify the Construction Contractor, and the Department, in writing, within five (5) business days of its
identification, of any aspect of the Construction Contractor's performance which is inconsistent with the Contract
Documents or which, in the Professional’s opinion, is inconsistent with the design intent of the Professional’s
Contract Documents. Prescribe a reasonable time for correction which will not jeopardize the Project
construction schedule completion date. Exert all practical administrative means necessary to reguire the
Construction Contractor to perform as required by their Construction Contract to meet the design intent of the
Professional's Contract Documents/architectural and/or engineering drawings and specifications requirements.

Deficient Performance: Upon identification of deficient performance, where the Project Construction Contractor
fails to provide timely or acceptable performance, the Professional shall proceed as follows: (1) Notify within
three (3) business days the Department, the Construction Contractor and any affected surety, in writing, and
by registered mail delivery, of the potential for the Construction Contractor’s default action and the Professional's
recommendation; (2) Identify applicable Construction Contract references, with design interpretation of such
references, and clearly explain where the Construction Contractor's performance fails to meet the design intent
of the Professional’'s Contract Documents; and (3) Specify a time and date for the Construction Contractor to
begin active and continuous work towards Contract compliance and a specific time and date for completion.

Potential Default: Upon notification by the Department of potential default by the Construction Contractor, where
the Project Construction Contractor fails to adequately perform, the Professional shall proceed as follows: (1)
Document the potential default, in writing, to the Construction Contractor, the Construction Contractor's surety
and the Department; (2) Provide an explanation of the consequences of the potential default to the Project; (3)
Provide the Department with a complete set of Project record documentation necessary to assist the
Department in the legal implementation of the Construction Contractor's default action; (4) Establish an
appropriate amount and withhold from payment certification of the associated line item(s), include a retainage

-19-




Task 607

Task 608

Task 609

Task 610

consisting of any costs expended for testing and other investigations necessary to establish unsatisfactory
performance plus a contingency amount, adequate for the Department to correct such unacceptable
performance by means other than the Construction Contractor; and (5) Notify the Construction Contractor and
their surety, in writing, of the withholding.

Default; Upon notification of the Project Construction Contractor's default, the Professional shall proceed as
follows: (1) Identify the extent of defaulted and/or remaining Project work; (2) Recommend a procedural
program for the Department to achieve the defauited work within the remaining Project construction time
schedule if possible; and (3) Provide modified Bidding Documents that will allow the Department to rebid the
remaining portion of work using the Professional’'s recommendations. The Professional will be compensated
by the Department with a Contract Change Order for providing the defaulted Construction Contractor
assistance service.

PUNCH LIST PROCEDURES: Prepare and distribute Punch Lists for each Construction Contract. Prescribe a
reasonable time schedule for completion of all construction Punch List items and identify an additional amount
to be withheld from payment should standard closeout schedule of values be deemed insufficient to assure the
Department sufficient funds to cover all costs as may become necessary to complete the remaining delinquent
work. Distribute Punch Lists within five (5) business days of the final Inspection. Notify the Construction
Contractor of any delinquent Punch List construction corrections and take appropriate action in accordance
with Tasks 604 and 606.

CLAIMS: Evaluate and respond to any claims (in whole or in part) against the Department within five (5)
business days of the receipt of such claim, in the Professional’s office. Where any element of claims or
subsequent litigation, are based, in whole or in part, upon any deficiency or delinquency in the Professional's
services, the Professional shall provide, in a timely manner, all professional services necessary to defend the
claim issue(s). No payment will be due for claim defense services accumulated under this Task until settlement
or judgment of litigation concludes the claim issue. The claim settlement or judgment decision will be used as
the basis for determining the Professional's obligation, if any, for the costs of such professional services andfor
for any costs incurred by the Department for which performance by the Professional may be responsible or
contributory. Billing under this claims Task will be in accordance with an appropriate Contract Modification
and/or Contract Change Order.

AS-BUILT DOCUMENTS: Within forty-five (45) consecutive calendar days after receipt of properly prepared
and submitted Construction Contractor annotated as-built documents, incorporate, and render them into the
Professional’s original Contract Documents for as-built documents. The Professional shall provide the Design
and Construction Division with the following two (2) types of deliverable as-built documents for Project close-out:
1) One (1) set of legible/reproducible bond copy completely updated and corrected, as-built records of the
Contract Documents/architectural and/or engineering drawings; and 2) Two (2) electronic sets of completely
updated and corrected as-built record close- out documents and architectural and/or engineering drawings, one
in .pdf format and one in Auto CAD format that is “Auto CAD readable” and conforms to the American Institute of
Avrchitects (AIA) National CAD Standard format.

The as-built documents shall depict all construction modifications, additions, and deletions made either by
Addendum, Bulletin, supplemental written instructions, and the written notations shown on the Construction
Contractor's as-built drawings. The Professional’s as-built architectural and engineering drawings shall be of
such clarity, detail, and completeness that reference to other documents will not be required to describe or
depict, the Project. The as-built documents shall be free of the Professional's original architectural and/or
engineering final design errors and omissions. The Professional shall revise the final design as-built drawings
as necessary to incorporate all requested Department revisions as required for the Department's formal written
acceptance and approval of the Project as-built drawings and the Project final on-site Inspection. The
Professional’s services for the Task 609, As-Built Documents are not complete until: (1) The as-built architectural
and engineering drawings have been verified, in writing, by the Professional to the Project Director as being
accurate and complete; and (2) The as-built architectural and engineering drawings have been turned over and
accepted by the Department's, Project Director in writing.

CLOSE-OUT PROCEDURES: Maintain for the Project record a schedule of the Construction Contractor’s
required submittals for Project close-out. Review and approve or reject all submittals as appropriate.

20-




Within forty-five (45) consecutive calendar days after Substantial Completion of the Project, after building or
Project occupancy, verify to the Department's, Project Director in writing, that the following documents have
been received: (1.) All Project code compliance approvals; (2.) Final Inspections; (3.) Final occupancy permits;
(4.) Construction Contractor's as-built final design marked-up architectural and engineering drawings; (5.)
Copies of "Operation and Maintenance Manuals” of the Project systems; and (6.) Equipment warranties and
guarantees.

Provide to the Design and Construction Division within forty-five (45) consecutive calendar days after
Substantial Completion of the Project, three (3) copies of "Operation and Maintenance Manuals" of the Project
systems and equipment. These close-out manuals shall include copies of reduced size, as-built architectural
and engineering drawings, specifications, and all instructions published or furnished by respective
manufacturers, construction code compliance certificates, equipment warranties, and guarantees. The manuals
shall also include a complete description of the Professional’'s Final Design intent concepts, operation, and
required maintenance of each system. Participate in the Construction Contractor's start-up and in the training
instruction of State/Client Agency personnel in the operation and use of the Project systems.

PHASE 700 - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION - FIELD SERVICES

The Department may provide full or-part-time Department Field Representatives to monitor the coordination and progress of the
services of the Professional and the Project work of the Construction Contractor(s). Such Inspections may generate reports,
minutes of meetings, notes, and documents, which will be available to, and may be useful for, the Professional. The Project
Director, or Department Field Representative, has the authority to require the Professional to respond to and resolve design related
problems, construction field problems and to attend Project related meetings. Unless delegated by specific written notice from the
Department, the Department Field Representative does not have any authority to order any changes in the Project scope of work
or authorize any adjustments in Contract price or Contract time.

The Professional shall provide sufficient field Inspections of the Project to administer the construction Phase field services and its
related construction Phase administration office services, as directly related to the degree of Project complexity and, up to and
including full-time field Inspections. The construction field Inspections shall accur as the construction on-site field conditions and
the Project may require and during the regularly scheduled twice a month progress meeting. The Professional shall use for their
construction field Inspection services, only personnel having such professional expertise, experience, authority, and compatibility
with departmental procedures as the Department may approve. The Professional agrees that such characteristics are essential for
the successful completion of the Project. Such individuals shall be replaced for cause where the Department determines and
notifies the Professional, in writing, of their unacceptable performance.

The Professional shall review the Project construction work in place and that sequentially planned. The Professional shall determine
whether the actual Project construction schedule progress appears to be in accordance with the approved Project construction
schedule and whether the quality of the work appears to be in accordance with the design intent of the Professional's Phase 500
- Contract Documents/architectural andfor engineering drawings and specifications requirements and are without apparent defects
ordeficiencies. No on-site advertising by, or of, the Professional or Project signs other than those appropriate to locate an approved
field office will be permitted.

Task 701 COORDINATION: Coordinate the Professional’s staff, Consultant firm's staff, Construction Contractors, and all
other Project related resources.

Task 702 PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING: Preside at and record preconstruction/organizational meetings for each
Construction Contract. Issue meeting minutes and the completed "DTMB 0460, Project Procedures” documents
package.

Task 703 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS: The Professional and their Consultants shalt conduct and record the principal

events and status of the work of all scheduled and other on-site Project activities. The construction field
Inspections shall occur as the field conditions and the Project may require and during the regularly scheduled
progress and payment meetings.

All construction progress Inspections shall be recorded in the form of a written report to the Department and
the C